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ViV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2012

In this report ‘Viv Healthcare’ or the ‘Group’ means ViV Healthcare Limited and its substdiary undertakings
The ‘Company’ means VuV Healthcare Limited

The Directors submit their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for ViV Healthcare for the
year ended 31st December 2012

Principal activities

ViV Healthcare 15 a specialist HIV group of companies focused solely on the research, development and
commercialisation of HIV medicines On 29th October 2012 ViV Healthcare acquired the 50% share of the
Shionogi-VuV Healthcare joint venture previously held by Shionogi & Co, Ltd in return for a 10% shareholding
in ViV Healthcare Limited and additional contingent constderation payable based on the future sales
performance of compounds developed in the jomnt venture Shionogi & Co, itd 1s also entitled to “Marketed
Products Dividends” simitar to those to which GSK and Pfizer are entitled The Group 15 now owned 76 5% by
GlaxoSrmithKhine ple (“GSK”), 13 5% by Pfizer Inc (“Pfizer”) and 10% by Shionogi & Co , Ltd {“Shionogr”)

The Group continues to have ongoing arrangements with GSK, Pfizer and Shionogi as disclosed in Note 25
The Directors do not envisage any change in the nature of business in the foreseeable future

The Company 1s domiciled within the UK The activities of the company are those of the holding company
Review of business

Core results reporting

Core results reporting align business performance reporting around the underlying trading performance of the
Group and its pnimary growth drivers by removing the volatdity inherent in many of the non-core items Core
results reporting 1s unlised as the basis for internal perfermance reporting and the core results are presented
and discussed in the Financial highlights section below as management believes that this approach provides
shareholders with a clearer view of the underlying trading performance of the Group The Financial highhghts
section also presents and discusses the total results of the Group The measures are not defined under IFRS
and they may not be directly comparable with other companies’ adjusted measures

Core results exclude the following items from total results amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
(excluding computer software), Preferential dwidend and Contingent consideration re-measurement and
unwinding, and acquisition accounting adjustments for matenal acquisihons, together with the tax effects of
these items

Reconciliations of core results to total results are presented on page 14
Financial highhghts

During the year the Group’s revenue decreased to £1,337 million (2011 £1,537 million), driven by the impact
of generics in the western markets, and profit after tax increased to £492 million (2011 £422 milion) Core
operating profit decreased to £797 million {2011 £835 million}, dniven by the dechne in revenue, offset by
savings on cost of sales, selling, general and administration and research and development expenditure

The Group continued to generate cash from operating activities of £618 million (2011 £385 million) whilst
returming £343 milhion {2011 £793 milhion) to shareholders through ordinary and preferential dividend
payments Cash generated from operations increased compared to the prior year as a result of reduced
working capital and lower tax payments Cash and cash equivalents increased from £518 million to £756
milhon
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2012

The Group’s results for the year can be found on page 12
Operational highlights

The company’s growth was pnimarily driven by Epzicom/Kivexa {up 6% to £652 million} and Selzentry/Celsentni
{up 14% to £123 million) offset by a decline in the mature portfolio (down 31% to £563 million)

The Epzicom/Kivexa sales growth was driven by strong performances in all regions In North America sales of
Epzicom were £274 million, up 6% reflecting a relatively equal mix of volume and price growth Europe sales of
Kivexa were £279 million, up 4% primanly driven by volume growth partly offset by price cuts The volume
growth in Europe benefited from renewed confidence in Kivexa based on latest chinical data and improved
positiomng In regional and local guidelines International sales of Kivexa were £98 millien, up 14% primarily
driven by the growth in Emerging markets Kivexa continues to grow In Japan and a number of emerging
markets including Asia Pacific

The Selzentry/Celsentrs sales growth was pnimanly driven by an increase in share of the third agent market In
North America sales were £61 million, up 27%, Evrope sales were £48 million, down by 2% driven by adverse
exchange rate maovements, and in International sales were £9 7 million, up 67%

The decline in the mature portfolio {including Combvir which declined 44% to £173 million) s primarily driven
by a decline Iin the western markets as a result of generic entry

VuV Healthcare has generic competition in the USA to three of its products, Combwvir, Epivir and Ziagen
Access and Care

Prowiding a comprehensive, sustainable approach to improving access to HIV medicines remains a key priority
for VuV Healthcare This commitment covers 135 countries including middle-income countries, low-income
countries, least developed countries and sub-Saharan Africa VuV Healthcare offers royalty-free voluntary
licences and not-for-profit pricing in all low-income and least developed countries and in sub-5aharan Africa,
where 75% of all people with HIV currently ive In middle-income countries the approach 1s on a case-by-case
basis, taking into account the local needs, with a tiered-pricing policy based on Gross Domestic Product and
the burden of the epidemic to improve affordability All marketed and pipeline HIV medicines are covered by
VuV Healthcare’s access policy

Recognising the urgent need to address the gaps In care and treatment of paediatnic HIV, ViV Healthcare
spearheaded a broad range of initiatives 1n 2012 These include a first-of-its-kind collaberation with the Clinton
Health Access Imtiative {“CHAI"} and Mylan Pharmaceuticals to produce a taste-masked, dispersible fixed-dose
combination medicine for paediatric use in resource-hmited settings Significant unrestricted educational
grants were also prowvided to five organisations including the International AIDS Society and amfAR’s Treat Asia
to support programmes aiming to improve paediatric HIV treatment and care through the collection of data,
information and research VuV Healthcare’s Positive Action for Children Fund (“PACF”) also expanded its
support for community projects aimed at elimiating mother to child transmission of HIV

ViV Healthcare continues to make important progress in supporting the community response to HIV/AIDS
through its partnerships, connections and collaborations with the broader HIV commuaity Positive Action and
PACF now support over 150 programmes in more than 50 countries In 2012, ViV Healthcare was recognised
by Funders Concerned About AIDS (“FCAA”) and the European HIV/AIDS Funders Group (“EFG”) as a top
philanthropic HIV/AIDS funder in both the US and Europe
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VuV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2012

Key performance indicators

The key performance indicators for the Group are considered to be revenue, Core operating profit, profit after
tax and cash and cash equivalents Details can be found in the financial highlights section above

Results and dwvidends
The Group’s results for the financial year are shown in the consolidated income statement on page 12

The Directors propose an intenm ordinary dividend of £450 million in respect of the year ended 31st
December 2012 being £55,036 per Class A Share, £22,194 per Class B Share and £21,429 per Class C Share

The Directors wilt propose a preferential dividend in respect of the year ended 31st December 2012 at a future
date {2011 £37 mullion)

The Directors proposed and paid two intenim ordinary dividends amounting to £306 millon and one
preferential dividend of £37 million in respect of the year ended 31st December 2011

The first interim ordinary dividend of £170 million being £20,791 per Class A Share, £8,385 per Class B Share
and £8,095 per Class € Share was paid on the 4th Apnl 2012

The second interim ordinary dividend of £136 million being £16,634 per Class A Share, £6,708 per Class B Share
and £6,477 per Class C Share was paid on the 20th June 2012

Principal risks and uncertainties

The business 1s subject to certain nsks inherent in the pharmaceutical industry and specific nsks associated
with being concentrated in a single therapeutic area

For each of the risks described below, the Group has implemented a system of internal control that involves
policies and procedures, communication and training programmes, supervision and monitoring processes for
escalating 1ssues to the appropnate level of senior management Such a system helps facilitate the Group’s
ability to respond appropriately to risks and to achieve Group objectives and helps ensure compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and internal policies

The Group’s operating model includes a flexible cost base, with no manufacturing or research and
development infrastructure, which results in the ability to resize the business in the event of an unforeseen
risk

Itis not possible, however, for the Group to implement controls to respond to all the nisks that it may face, and
there can be no assurance that the steps the Group has taken to address certain risks will manage these risks
effectively or at all

intellectual property issues

In the pharmaceutical industry expiry or loss of patents has the potential to matenially impact on product
revenues as generic producers market competing products at a significantly lower price This may lead to
significant reductions in revenue over a relatively short period of time Patents can be challenged at any time
and the protection provided can vary between jurisdictions
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VuV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2012

Pricing and access issues

Pharmaceutical products are subject to price controls or pressures and other restnictions in many markets
There are a number of markets where governments intervene directly by setting the price for specific
products In addition, there are markets where major purchasers of pharmaceuticals are able to exert
substantial price pressure and hmit access to certain products The Group cannot accurately predict whether
existing pressures, controls and restrictions will increase or whether new controls, pressures and restrictions
will anse which may materially affect the Group’s results

Product competition

The Group operates In a competitive market Our products can experience competition with other branded
products and genernic pharmaceuticals which treat similar diseases Significant product innovations, technical
advances or incremental price competition by competitors may matenally impact the Group’s revenue

Product Quality and Patient Safety

Patients, consumers and healthcare professionals trust the quality of our products at the pomnt of use A faillure
to ensure product quality 1s an enterprise risk which 15 applicable across the entire Group The impact of this
risk, should the risk occur, could have far reaching implications in terms of the health of our patients and
customers, reputation, regulatory, legal, and financial consequences for the Group

Supply Chain Continuity

An interruption in supply of products from GSK, Pfizer or other third-party suppliers in the event of regulatory
nen-compliance or phystcal disruption may materially and adversely affect the Group’s financial results

Anti-Bribery and Corruption

The Group’s extensive and increasingly international operations may give rise to possible claims of bribery and
corruption The Group operates in a number of markets where the corruption risk has been identified as high
by groups such as Transparency International Failure to comply with applicable legislation such as the US
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the UK Bribery Act, or ssmilar legislation in other countries, could expose the
Group and senior officers to civil and cniminal sanction This could potentially include fines, prosecution, and
debarment from public procurement and reputational damage, all of which could matenally and adversely
affect the Group’s financial results

Pipeline success

The continued development of effective new products s entical in driving future revenue and earmings growth
It 15 also required to replace older products where loss of exclusivity can lead to reductions in revenue The
research and development of new products often requires a significant investment over a number of years
There can be no assurances that the resulting product will meet clinical and commeraial objectives or meet the
regulatory standards

Changing regulatory and business environment

The Group Is subject to a broad range of regulatory controls on the testing, approval, manufacturing and
marketing of its products Changes in the regulatory environment can increase the likelihood of product failure
in the R&D phase and increase the cost of production This can matenally affect the Group’s performance
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2012

Global financial crisis and eurozane debt crisis

Concerns about credit sk (in particular that of sovereigns) and the eurozone crisis remain The large sovereign
debts and/or fiscal deficits of a number of European countnes have raised concerns regarding the financial
condition of financial institutions with direct or indirect exposure to these countries The default or a
significant decline 1n the credit rating, of one or more sovereigns or financial institutions could cause severe
stress in the financial system It could adversely affect some of the markets in which the Group operates and
the businesses and economic conditton and prospects of the Group’s customers, counterparties or creditors,
directly or indirectly, in ways which are difficult to predict The Group 1s monitering its exposure in these
markets and has put steps in place to hmit exposure to these risks

Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were as follows

C Heiman Resigned 01/06/12
D Giordano Appointed 01/06/12
ZHong

A Hussain

1 Keller Appointed on 31/10/12
D Learmouth

D Limet

A Mackenzie

| McCubbin

D Redfern

E Strahlman

Directors' indemnity

The service contract of each of the Directors of the Group contains an indemnity in respect of hiabilities arising
out of third party proceedings to which he or she 1s party by reason of his or her engagement in the business of
the Group In addition, the parent company (Vv Healthcare Limited) has provided indemnities to those of its
employees who serve as Directors of certain other Group undertakings These indemnities are in respect of
habibties arising out of third party proceedings to which the relevant individual 1s a party by reason of his or
her engagement in the business of the Group undertaking

Research and Development

The Group 15 responsible for initiating and funding research and development actwities, which are carried out
by GlaxoSmithKline plc, Pfizer In¢, Shienogi & Co, Ltd and their affiliates

On 17th December 2012, Vv Healthcare subrmitted regulatory applications 1n the European Union {EU),
United States (US) and Canada for the investigational integrase inhibitor dolutegravir (5/GSK1349572) for the
treatment of HIV infection in adults and adelescents Phase Il trials in support of both dolutegravir and a fixed
dose combination “572-Trn” (dolutegravir/Epzicom/Kivexa) are ongoing

Employees

An extensive programme of open, twe-way communications stimulates employee engagement in the Group's
strategy and day-to-day operations This includes the publication of regular summary reports from the Group’s
management meetings, a Group-wide intranet, town hall meetings and wvideo conferences Live wideo
streaming and video on demand options have been developed as additional means of ensuring employees
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VuV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2012

have access to the most seruor levels of management, and as powerful tools for building culture and driving
alignment across common goals The programme also involves consultation with employees on a regular basis
s0 that the views of employees can be taken into account in making decisions that are hkely to affect their
interests and achieving a common awareness of all employees in the financial and economic factors that affect
the Group's performance

Share ownership schemes encourage participation as shareholders in GlaxeSmithKline plc, the ultimate parent
company of the Group, increasing awareness of short and long term business objectives Global employee
opinion surveys allow employees the opportunity to express therr views and perspectives on important
company 1ssues

The Group 1s committed to employment policies free from discrimination against potential or existing staff on
the grounds of age, race, ethnic and national origin, gender, sexual orientation, faith or disability

In particular the Group 1s committed to offering people with disabilities access to the full range of recruitment
and career opportunities Every effort 1s made to retain and support staff who become disabled while working
for the Group

Payment policy
The Company operates procedures to ensure that suppliers are paid on time In particular, the Company seeks

e tosettle terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of the transaction,
*  to ensure that suppliers are made aware of the agreed terms of payment, and
e to abide by the terms of payment

The procedures include arrangements for accelerated payment of small suppliers
Payment perfarmance

At the 31st December 2012, the average number of days’ payable outstanding represented by trade payables
of the Company was nil {2011 nil)

Political and charitable donations

The Group made no pobtical donations during the year (2011 nif) Charitable donations of £11 O million (2011
£11 5 million) were made via the PACF

Financial instruments

Information regarding the Group's risk exposure to and management of financial Instruments 1s disclosed In
Note 29 to the financial statements

Directors’ statement of responsibilities in relation to the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union In preparing the Group financial statements, the Directors
have also elected to comply with IFRS, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
Under company law the Directors must not approve the Group financial statements unless they are satisfied
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31st December 2012

that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that penod

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

¢ state whether IFRS as adopted by the European Union and IFRS as tssued by the IASB have been
foliowed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Group financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and to enable them to ensure that the Group financial statements comply with the Compantes Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors in office at the date of this Report have each confirmed that

e 5o far as he or she i1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware, and

¢ he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or
herself aware of any relevant audit infermation and to estabhsh that the Company's auditors are
aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be nterpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Going concern basis

After making enquinies, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the fareseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing the financial statements

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are willing to continue in office as auditors and resolutions dealing with their
reappointment and remuneration will be proposed at a General Meeting of the Group

On behalf of the Board

D Limet
Director

2§ March 2013
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Independent auditors’ report to the members of VuV Healthcare Limited

We have audited the group financial statements of Vv Healthcare Limited for the year ended 31st December
2012 which compnise the Consolidated income statement, Consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
Consolidated balance sheet, Consclidated statement of changes 1n equity, Consohdated cash flow statement
and the related notes, including reconciliation ta US GAAP The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 8, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibifity for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by cur prior consent in
wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia! statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from maternal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the group’s circumstances and have been consistently appled and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements [n addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the group financial statements

e« give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31st December 2012 and of its profit
and cash flows for the year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

As explained in note 1 to the group financial statements, the group In addition to complying with its legal
obligation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (fASB)

In our opinion the group financial statements comply with IERSs as 1ssued by the IASB
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ViV Healthcare Limited
independent auditors’ report to the members of VuV Healthcare Limited

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the infarmation given in the Directors’ Repoert for the financial year for which the group financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you If, in our opinion

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Other matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of VitV Healthcare Limited for the
year ended 31st December 2012

The Company has passed a resolution in accordance with section 506 of the Companies Act 2006 that the
senior statutory auditor’s name should not be stated

PricewaterhouseCocopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

2§ March 2013
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31st December 2012

Notes 2012 2011
{Restated}
£000 £'000
Turnover 5 1,337,449 1,536,512
Cost of sales (238,099) (362,592)
Gross profit 1,099,350 1,173,520
Selling, general and administration (256,84¢6) (260,150)
Research and development (343,782) (139,880)
Gain on acquisition of joint venture 27 517,392 -
Operating profit 1,016,114 773,850
Share of after tax losses of joint ventures 10 {33,290} (30,587)
Finance income 8 2,849 2,897
Finance expense 9 (344,624) (92,164)
Profit before taxation 641,049 654,036
Taxation 11 (148,810) (232,370)
Profit after taxation for the year 492,239 421,666
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31st December 2012
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Profit for the year 492,239 421,666
Exchange movements on overseas net assets (10,772) (14,014}
Tax on exchange movements - 555
Actuanal losses on defined benefit plans (1,225} (785)
Deferred tax on actuanal movements in defined 143 229
benefit plans
Other comprehensive loss for the year {11,854) {14,015}
Total comprehensive income for the year 480,385 407,651
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31st December 2012

Notes 2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,004 1,024
Goodwill 14 203,179 210,695
Other intangible assets 15 2,047,388 557,735
Investments in joint ventures 10 4,454 8,271
Deferred tax assets 11 67,215 45,831
Other non-current assets 16 152 546
Total non-current assets 2,323,392 824,102
Current assets
Inventories 17 16,458 37,009
Current tax recoverahle - 32,038
Trade and other receivables 18 272,002 402,220
Dernivative financial assets 29 817 566
Cash and cash equivalents 19 755,812 518,403
Total current assets 1,045,089 990,236
Total assets 3,368,481 1,814,338
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and overdrafts (8,858} (385)
Trade and other payables 20 {405,500) {512,502)
Derivative financial habilities 29 (233) (535)
Current tax payable {6,506} (44,620}
Short-term prowvistons 21 (876) (2,464)
Total current liabilities (421,973) (560,506)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings {414) {536)
Deferred tax iahilities 11 {272,707) (130,631)
QOther prowvisions 21 (10,173) (4,442)
Other non-current liabilities 22 {1,656,349) (626,737)
Total non-current habilities {1,939,643) (762,346)
Total liabilities {2,361,616) {(1,322,852)
Net assets 1,006,865 491,486
Equity
Share capital 23 11 10
Share premium 341,000 -
Retained earnings 1,741,140 1,225,608
Merger reserve {78,702) (78,349)
Other reserves (996,584) {655,783)
Tptal equity 1,006,865 491,486

igned on its behalf by

Limet
Director

he financial statements on pages 12 to 61 were approved by the Board of Directors on ?3 March 2013 and
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Core results reconciliation
For the year ended 31st December 2012

Note Core Intangible Intangible Preferential Preferential Acquisition Total
Results amortisation wrnite-off dividend dividend & adjustment 2012
re- Contingent results
measurement  consideration
unwinding
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 1,337,449 - - - - - 1,337,449
Cost of sales (205,451) (32,648) - - - - (238,099)
Gross Profit 1,131,998 (32,648) - - - - 1,099,350
Selling, general (245,953) - - - (10,893) - (256,846)
and
administration
Research and {89,244) - (254,538) - - - {343,782)
development
Gamn on 27 - - - - - 517,392 517,392
acquisition of
joint venture
Operating 796,801 (32,648) (254,538) - {10,893) 517,392 1,016,114
profit
Share of after 10  (33,290) - - - - - {33,290)
tax profits of
Joint venture
Finance Income 8 2,849 - - - - - 2,849
Finance 9 {3,958) - 144,986 (419,484) (66,168) - (344,624)
expense
Profit before 762,402 {32,648) (109,552) (419,484} (77,061} 517,392 641,049
taxation
Taxation {231,781) 13,531 63,600 - - 5,840 {148,810)
Profit after 530,621 {19,117) (45,952) {419,484) (77,061) 523,232 492,239

taxation for the
year
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ViV Healthcare Limited

Core results reconcthation

For the year ended 31st December 2011

Note Core Intangtble Intangible Preferential  Preferential Total 2011
Results amortisation write-off dividend dividend {restated)
re- unwinding results
measurement
£000 £'000 £000 £7000 £'000 £/000
Turnover 1,536,512 - - - - 1,536,512
Cost of sales {329,999) {32,593) - - - {362,592)
Gross Profit 1,206,513 (32,593) - - - 1,173,920
Selhng, general and {260,150} - - - - (260,150)
administration
Research and (111,713) - {28,167) - - (139,880)
develocpment
Operating profit 834,650 (32,593) (28,167} - - 773,890
Share of after tax 10 (30,587) - - - - (30,587)
profits of joint
ventures
Finance Income 8 2,897 - - - - 2,897
Finance expense 9 {4,238) - 82,960 {109,872) (61,014) (92,164)
Profit before 802,722 (32,593) 54,793 {109,872) {61,014) 654,036
taxation
Taxation {252,880) 19,881 629 - - (232,370}
Profit after 549,842 (12,712) 55,422 {109,872) {61,014} 421,666

taxation for the
year
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ViV Healthcare Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31st December 2012

Share Retained Share Merger Other Total
capital earnings Premium reserve  reserves equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 2011 10 1,522,782 - {78,482) (567,857) 876,453
Profit for the year - 421,666 - - - 421,666
Other comprehensive(loss)/ income - (14,148) - 133 - (14,015)
for the year
Transfer of finance expense related - 87,926 - - (87,926) -
to preferential dividend
Ordinary dividends to shareholders - {792,618) - - - {792,618}
At 31st December 2011 10 1,225,608 - (78,349) (655,783) 491,486
Issue of shares 1 - 341,000 - 341,001
Profit for the year - 492,239 - - - 492,239
Other comprehensive {loss)/income - (11,501} - (353) - (11,854)
for the year
Transfer of finance expense related - 340,666 - - {340,666) -
to preferential dimdend
Preferential dwadend to - (36,865) - - 36,865 -
Shareholders
Shionogi preferred ordinary - 37,000 - - (37,000} -
dividend
Ordinary dividends to shareholders - (306,007) - - - {306,007)
At 31st December 2012 11 1,741,140 341,000 {78,702} {996,584) 1,006,865

Other reserves represents the preferential dividends payable to shareholders (Note 22) and additional
value attributed to the onginal contribution of the former GSK HIV business in Canada wn October 2009
following finalisation of the value of the contribution at that date

Other reserves do not affect the calculation of the Company’s realised profits available for distribution
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31st December 2012

Notes 2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit after taxation for the year 492,239 421,666
Adjustments reconciling profit after tax te 26 387,078 276,998
operating cash flows
Cash generated from operations 879,317 698,664
Taxation paid {259,071) (313,815)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 620,246 384,849
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (545) (2,013)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and 198 314
equipment
Capital expenditure on intangible assets {2,591) -
Interest received 1,885 2,375
Cash returned to sharehelders on dissolution of 10 7,392 -
joint venture
Investment in joint ventures (39,451) (31,804}
Dividends recewved from joint ventures 2,418 2,405
Net cash outflow from investing activities (30,694) (28,723)
Cash flow from financing activities
Net repayment of obhigation under finance leases {258) (313)
Interest paid {3,120) (3,810)
Dividends paid to shareholders (342,872) (792,618)
Other financing items (4,438) (5,463)
Net cash outflow from financaing activities {350,688) {802,204)
Increase/({Decrease) in cash and bank overdrafts 238,864 (446,078)
Exchange adjustments {9,967) (6,618)
Cash and bank overdrafts at beginning of year 518,357 971,053
Cash and bank overdrafts at end of year 747,254 518,357
Cash and bank overdrafts at end of year comprise
Cash and cash equivalents 19 755,812 518,403
Overdrafts (8,558) (46)
747,254 518,357
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ViV Healthcare Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2012

1. Presentation of the financial statements
Description of bustness

ViV Healthcare Limited 1s a specialist HIV group focused solely on the research, development and
commercialisation of HIV medicines The Group was established as a collaboration between GSK and Pfizer On
29th October 2012 ViV Healthcare acquired the 50% share of the Shionogi-Viv Healthcare joint venture
previously held by Shionogi & Co, Ltd in return for a 10% shareholding in ViV Healthcare Limited and
additional contingent consideration payable based on the future sales performance of compounds developed
in the joint venture Shionogi & Co, Ltd 15 also entitled to “Marketed Products Dividends” similar to those to
which GSK and Pfizer are entitled The Group 1s now owned 76 5% by GlaxoSmithKline ple {“GSK”), 13 5% by
Pfizer Inc (“Pfizer”) and 10% by Shionogt & Co , Ltd {“Shicnogi”)

Compliance with apphicable law and IFRS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and International Accounting Standards {IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and related interpretations, as adopted by the European Union

The financial statements are also in compliance with IFRS as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards
Board

Composition of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are drawn up in Sterling, the functional currency of ViV Healthcare
Limited, and in accardance with IFRS accounting presentation The financial statements comprise

e (Consolidated income statement

e Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
+ Consolidated balance sheet

e Consolidated statement of changes in equity

* Consolidated cash flow statement

* Notes to the financial statements

Core results reporting

Core results reporting align business performance reporting around the underlying trading performance of the
Group and 1ts prumary growth drivers by remowving the volatility inherent in many of the non-core items Core
results reporting 1s ubilised as the basis for internal performance reporting and the core results are presented
in the Core results reconcihation as management bhelieves that this approach provides shareholders with a
clearer view of the underlying trading performance of the Group The Core results reconciliation also presents
and discusses the total results of the Group The measures are not defined under IFRS and they may not be
directly comparable with other companies’ adjusted measures

Core results exclude the following items from total results amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
{excluding computer software), Preferential dividend and Contingent consideration re-measurement and
unwinding, and acquisition accounting adjustments for matenal acquisitions, together with the tax effects of
these items

Reconciliations of core results to total results are presented on page 14
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VuV Healthcare Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2012

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared using the histonical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certamn items, as stated in the accounting policies

Financial period

These financial statements cover the financial year from 1st January to 31st December 2012, with comparative
figures for the financial year from 1st January to 31st December 2011

Composition of the Group

A list of the subsidiary and associated undertakings whtch, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the amount of profit or the net assets of the Group 15 given 1n Note 32, ‘Principal group companies’

Accounting principles and policies

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
habkilities and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those
estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies approved by
the Board and described in Note 2, ‘Accounting principles and policies’ Information on the application of these
accounting pohcies, including areas of estimation and judgement (s given in Note 3, ‘Key accounting
Jjudgements and estimates’

implementation of new accounting standards

with effect from 1 January 2012, ViV Healthcare Limited has implemented amendments to IFRS 7 “Disclosure
- Transfers of financial assets” and 1AS 12 “Deferred tax recovery of underlying assets” These revisions had no
maternial impact on the current period

Parent company financial statements

The financial statements of the parent company, ViV Healthcare Limited, have been prepared in accordance
with UK GAAP and with UK accounting presentation The company balance sheet is presented on page 65 and
the accounting policies are given on page 66

2. Accounting principles and policies
Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include

e the assets and habilities, and the results and cash flows, of the Company and its subsidiaries
¢ the Group's share of the results and net assets of joint ventures

The financial statements of entities consolidated are made up to 31st December each year
Entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies are accounted for

as subsidiaries Where the Group has the ability to exercise joint contro), the entities are accounted for as joint
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2012

ventures The results, assets and labilities of joint ventures are incorporated 1ato the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting

Interests acquired in entities are consolidated from the date the Group acquires control and interests sold are
de-consolidated from the date control ceases

Transactions and balances between subsidiaries are eliminated and no profit befare tax 1s taken on sales
between subsidiaries until the products are sold to customers outside the Group The relevant proportion of
profits on transactions with joint ventures 1s also deferred until the products are sold to third parties Deferred
tax rehief on unrealised intra-Group profit s accounted for only to the extent that 1t 1s considered recoverable

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of interests in subsidiaries and joint ventures, representing the excess of
the acquisition cost over the Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent
habilities acquired, 1s capitalised as a separate item in the case of subsidiaries and as part of the cost of
investment n the case of joint ventures Goodwill 1s denominated in the currency of the operation acquired
Where the cost of acquisition 1s below the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference 1s recognised
directly in the income statement

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method Identifiable assets,
habilities and contingent habilities acquired are measured at fair value at acquisition date The consideration
transferred 15 measured at fair vatue and includes the fair value of any contingent consideration The costs of
acquisition are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred

Where not all of the equity of a subsidiary 1s acquired the non-controlling interest 1s recognised either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s share of the net assets of the subsidiary on a case-by-case basis
Changes in the Group’s share of the cwnership percentage of subsidianes are accounted for within equity

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are booked in the functional currency of the Group companies at the exchange
rate ruhing on the date of transaction Foreign currency monetary assets and habilities are retranslated into the
functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences are included in
the income statement

On consolidation, assets and habifities, including related goodwiil, of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures,
are translated into Sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date The results and cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures are translated into Sterling using average rates of exchange

Exchange adjustments arising when the opening net assets and the profits for the year retained by overseas
subsidiaries and Jjoint ventures are translated into Sterling are taken to a separate component of equity

Revenue

Revenue I1s recognised In the income statement when goods or services are supplied or made availlable to
external customers against orders receved, title and risk of loss 15 passed to the customer, reliable estimates
can be made of relevant deductions and all relevant obligations have been fulfilled, such that the earnings
process Is regarded as being complete Turnover represents net invoice value after the deduction of discounts
and allowances given and accruals for estimated future rebates and returns The methodology and
assumptions used to estimate rebates and returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in the light of
contractual and legal obhgations, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions Market
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conditions are evaluated using wholesaler and other third party analyses, market research data and internally
generated information Value added tax and other sales taxes are excfuded from revenue

Expenditure

Expenditure 1s recognised in respect of goods and services received when supplied in accordance with
contractual terms Prowvision 1s made when an obligation exists for a future hability in respect of a past event
and where the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated Advertising and promotion expenditure is
charged to the iIncome statement as incurred Shipment costs on intercompany transfers are charged to cost of
sales, distrtbution costs on sales to customers are included in selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”)
expenditure

Research and development

Research and development expenditure s charged to the ncome statement in the period in which 1t s
mcurred Development expenditure Is capitaised when the critena for recognising an asset are met, usually
when a regulatory filing has been made 1n a major market and approval 1s considered highly probable
Property, plant and equipment used for research and development I1s depreciated in accordance with the
Group’s policy

In addition, charges for development cost for Phase IV trials and medical admnistration are now reported in
SG&A rather than research and development Comparative information has been restated accordingly The
adjustment for 2011 increases SG&A and decreases research and development cost by £31 3 million from the
amounts previously reported

Legal and other disputes

Provision 1s made for the anticipated settlement costs of legal or other disputes against the Group where an
outflow of resources 1s constdered prohable and a reliable estimate can be made of the likely outcome In
addition, prowision 15 made for legal or other expenses ansing from claims receved or other disputes In
respect of product liability claims related to products where there 1s sufficient history of claims made and
settlements, an incurred but not reported (IBNR) actuaral technique 1s used to determine a reasonable
estimate of the Group’s exposure to unasserted claims for those products and a provision 1s made on that
basis

No provision 1s made for other unasserted claims In respect of a number of legal proceedings in which the
Group 15 involved, it 15 not possible to make a rehable estimate of the expected financial effect, If any, that will
result from ultimate resclution of the proceedings In these cases, the Group may disclose information with
respect to the nature and facts of the case but no provision 15 typically made Costs asscciated with claims
made by the Group against thurd parties are charged to the income statement as they are incurred

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

Employees of the Group in the UK and US participate in various pension and post-employment schemes of
GlaxoSmithKhine affihates These schemes include both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes The
Group recognises the cost charged by the GlaxoSmithKline affiliate for the participation of Vv Healthcare
employees in the pension and post-employment schemes as an expense in the period in which it 1s imcurred

The Group also operates some other gverseas pension arrangements provided by state schemes, by defined
contnbution schemes, whereby retirement benefits are determined by the value of funds ansing from
contributions paid in respect of each employee, or by defined benefit schemes, whereby retirement benefits
are based on employee pensionable remuneration and length of service
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The Group recognises the cost of providing pensions under state schemes and defined contributton schemes
as an expense in the period in which 1t 1s incurred

The cost of providing pensions under defined benefit schemes 1s calculated using the projected unit credit
method and spread over the period during which benefit 1s expected to be derived from the employees'
services, consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries Pension obligations are measured as the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at rates reflecting the yields of high quality corporate bonds

Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date Actuanial gains and losses,
differences between the expected and actual returns of assets and the effect of changes in actuanal
assumptions, are recogmsed In the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they arise

Employee share plans

Incentives in the form of shares in the Group's ultumate parent company, GlaxoSmithKhine plc, are provided to
employees under share option and share award schemes These schemes are operated by GlaxoSmithKline
affiliates The fair values of these options and awards are calculated at their grant dates using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model and charged to the income statement over the relevant vesting periods At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its charge based on the number of options expected to vest, where
approprate

Dwvidends

Final dividends arnising on ordinary shares are recognised upon shareholder approval Intenm dividends ansing
on ordinary dividends are recognised when paid

Preferential dividends are contingent on the achievement of certain performance critena on assets provided
by, or acquired from, GlaxoSmrthKline, Pfizer and Shionog: affiliates Once earned, preferential dividends are
payable in full, prior to the payment of any ordinary dwvidend Any amounts that cannot be paid due to
insufficient distributable reserves will be carned forward to future years and will be paid in preference to any
subsequently declared dividend

Preferential dividends are recognised as habilities, reported at amortised cost and re-measured at each
reporting date to reflect any changes in expectation of the amounts to be paid Changes to the carrying value
of these liabilities are recognised in the income statement within financial expense

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) is stated at the cost of purchase or construction less provisions for
depreciation and impairment Financng costs are capitalised within the cost of qualifying assets in
construction

Depreciation Is calculated to write-off the cost less residual value of PP&E using the straight-line basis over the
expected useful ife Residual values and lives are reviewed, and where apgpropriate adjusted, annually The
normal expected useful hives of the major categories of PP&E are

e Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years
* Fixtures and equipment 3to 10 years
& Leased assets Lease term

On disposal of PP&E, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and impairments are removed from the
financial statements and the net amount less any proceeds is taken to the income statement
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Leases

Leasing agreements which transfer to the Group substantially all the benefits and risk of ownership of an asset
are treated as finance leases, as If the asset had been purchased outright All other leases are cperating feases
and the rental costs are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Goodwill

Goodwill 15 stated at cost less impairments Goodwill 1s deemed to have an indefinite useful life and 1s tested
for impairment annually

Cther intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less provisions for amortisation and impairments

Licences, patents, know-how and marketing rights separately acquired or acquired as part of a business
combination are amortised over their estimated useful lives, generally not exceeding 20 years, using the
straight-line basis from the time they are avaldable for use The estimated useful lives for determining the
amortisation charge take into account patent lives, where applicable, as well as the value obtained from
periods of non-exclusivity Asset lives are reviewed, and where appropniate, adjusted annually Contingent
milestone payments are recognised at the point that the contingent event becomes certain

Any development costs incurred by the Group and associated with acquired licences, patents, know-how or
marketing rights are written off to the income statement when incurred, unless the critena for recognition of
an internally generated intangible asset are met, usually when a regulatory filing has been made in a major
market and approval 1s considered highly probable

In addition, charges for amortisation related to marketed products are now reported in Cost of sales rather
than in SG&A Comparative information has been restated accordingly The adjustment for 2011 increases cost
of sales and decreases SG&A by £32 6 million from the amounts previously reported

The costs of acquiring and developing computer software for internal use and internet sites for external use
are capitalised as intangible fixed assets where the software or site supports a significant business system and
the expenditure leads to the creation of a durable asset ERP systems software 1s amortised over seven to ten
years and other computer software over three 1o five years

impairment of non-current assets

The carrying values of all non-current assets are reviewed for impairment when there 1s an indication that the
assets might be impaired Additionatly, goodwill and intangible assets which are not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually Any prowviston for impairment 1s charged to the income statement in the year
concerned Impairments of goodwill are not reversed Impairment losses on other non-current assets are only
reversed If there has been a change in estimates used to determine recoverable amounts and only to the
extent that the revised recoverable amounts do not exceed the carrying values that would have existed, net of
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairments been recognised

investments in joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method The investments are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of their net assets at date of acquisition and of their post-
acquisition retained profits or losses together with any goodwill anising on the acquisition
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inventories

Inventories are included in the financial statements at the lower of cost (including raw matenals, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads) and net realisable value Cost 1s generally determined on
a first in, first out basis Pre-launch inventory is held as an asset when there 1s a high probability of regulatory
approval for the product Before that point a provision 1s made against the carrying value to its recoverable
amount, the provision 15 then reversed at the point when a high probabiity of regulatory approval 1s
determined

Trade receivables

Trade recervables are carned at onginal invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts Provisions are
made where there 15 evidence of a nsk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, previous experience and
general economic conditions When a trade receivable 1s determined to be uncollectable 1t 1s wntten off, firstly
against any provision available and then to the income statement

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously provided for are credited to the income statement Long-term
receivables are discounted where the effect 1s matenal

Trade payables

Trade payables are held at amortised cost which equates to nominal value Long-term payables are discounted
where the effect 1s matenal

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, current balances with banks and similar institutions and
highly hguid investments generally with matunities of three months or less They are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and have an insignificant nisk of changes in value

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid applying tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax
bases of assets and habifities and their carrying amounts tn the financial statements

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avalable
against which the temporary differences can be utiised Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences
ansing on investments n subsidiaries and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it i1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future Deferred tax is provided using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Denvative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to market risks from treasury operations The
principle derivative instrument used by the Group 15 forward foreign exchange contracts The Group does not
hold or issue denvative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes

Derivative financial instruments are classified as held-for-trading and are carried in the balance sheet at farr
value

Page | 24




ViV Healthcare Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2012

Changes in the fair value of any dervative instruments that do not quahfy for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the iIncome statement

Discounting

Where the time effect of money 1s matenal, balances are discounted to current values using appropriate rates
of interest The unwinding of the discounts i1s recorded i finance income and finance expense

New Accounting requirements

The following new and amended accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations have been issued by the IASB
and are likely to affect future Annual Reports, although in the current forms, none 1s expected to have a
material impact cen the results or financial positton of the group

New [FRSs Effective for periods

beginning on or after
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1st January 2015
IFRS 10 Consohdated financial statements 1st January 2013
{FRS 11 loint arrangements 1st January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1st January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1st January 2013

Amendments and revisions to JFRSs

IFRS 1 Government Loans 1st January 2013

IFRS 7 Financial instruments Disclosures — Offsetting 1st January 2013
financial assets and financial habilities

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1st January 2013

IAS 19 Employee benefits 1st January 2013

IAS 32 Financial instruments Presentation 1st January 2014

3. Key accounting judgements and estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management Is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts of assets, labilities, revenue and expenses reported in the financial statements Actual amounts
and results could differ from those estimates The following are considered to be the key accounting
Judgements and estimates made

Turnover

Revenue I1s recognised when the title and nisk of loss 1s passed to the customer and reliable estimates can be
made of relevant deductions and all relevant obligations have been fulfilied, such that the earnings process 1s
regarded as being complete Gross turnover 1s reduced by rebates, discounts, allowances and product returns
given or expected to be given, which vary by product arrangements and buying groups These arrangements
with purchasing organisations are dependent upon the submission of claims some time after the initial
recognition of the sale Accruals are made at the time of sale for the estimated rebates, discounts or
allowances payable or returns to be made, based on avallable market information and historical experience

Because the amounts are estimated they may not fully reflect the final outcome, and the amounts are subject
to change dependent upon, amongst other things, the types of buying group and product sales mix
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The level of accrual 1s reviewed and adjusted regularly in the light of contractual and legal obligations,
historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions Market conditions are evaluated using
wholesaler and other third party analyses, market research data and internally generated information Future
events could cause the assumptions on which the accruals are based to change, which could affect the future
results of the Group

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid, and deferred tax 1s prowided on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabiities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

The Group believes that it has made adequate provision for any habilities likely to arise from assessments by
revenue authorities Should i1ssues arise, the ultimate liability for such matters may vary from the amounts
provided and 1s dependent upon the outcome of negotiations with the relevant tax authorities or, if necessary,
litigation proceedings

Preferential dividends

Preferential dividends are contingent on the achievement of certain performance criteria on assets provided
by, or acguired from, GlaxoSmithKline, Pfizer and Shionog affiliates The Group recognises liabihities in respect
of these preferential dividends which are reported at amortised cost and re-measured at each reporting date
to reflect any changes in expectation of the amounts to be paid {see Note 22)

Amounts involved tn this re-measurement are estimates of future performance, based on avallable market
information and historical perfermance and therefore may not fully reflect the final dividend amounts paid

Contingent consideration labtity

Contingent consideration for the acquisition of the former Shionogs-ViV Healthcare joint venture 15 expected
to be paid over several years and will vary in ine with sales of dolutegravir, for which regulatory applications
for marketing approval were submitted in the European Union, the US and Canada in December 2012 The
Group recogmises a habibty in respect of this contingent consideration which 1s reported at fair value and re-
measured at each reporting date to reflect any changes in expectation of the timing or amount of
consideration to be paid {see Note 22)

Amounts involved in this re-measurement are estimates of future performance, based on availlable market
information and historical performance, and therefore may not fully reflect the final consideration amount
paid

Goodwili

Goodwill arising on business combinations is capitalised and allocated to an appropnate cash generating unit
It 1s deemed to have an indefinite life and so 1s not amortised Annual impairment tests of the relevant cash
generating units are performed Imparrment tests are based on established market multiples or risk-adjusted
future cash flows discounted using appropriate interest rates These future cash flows are based on business
forecasts and are therefore inherently judgemental Future events could cause the assumptions used in these
impairment tests, as set out in Note 14, ‘Goodwill’, to change with a consequent adverse effect on the future
results of the Group
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Other intangible assets

Where intangible assets are acquired by the Group from third parties the costs of acquisition are capitalised
Licences to compounds in development are amortised from the point at which they are available for use, over
their estimated useful hives, which may include periods of non-exclusivity Estimated useful ives are reviewed
annually and impairment tests are undertaken If events occur which call into question the carrying values of
the assets

Both initial valuations and valuations for subsequent impairment tests are based on established market
multiples or risk-adjusted future cash flows discounted using appropriate interest rates These future cash
flows are based on business forecasts and are therefore inherently judgemental Future events could cause the
assumptions used in these impairment reviews to change with a consequent adverse effect on the future
results of the Group

Legal and other disputes

The Group provides for anticipated settlement costs where an outflow of rescurces 1s considered probable and
a reasonable estimate may be made of the likely outcome of the dispute and legal and other expenses arnsing
from claims against the Group

The ultimate liability for legal claims may vary from the amounts provided and is dependent upon the outcome
of itigation proceedings, investigations and possible settlement negotiations The position could change over
time and, therefore, there can be no assurance that any losses that result from the outcome of any legal
proceedings will not exceed the amount of the provisicns reported in the Group’s financial statements by a
material amount

Global financial crists and eurozone debt crisis

Concerns about credit risk {in particular that of sovereigns) and the eurczone crisis remain The large sovereign
debts and/or fiscal deficits of a number of European countries have raised concerns regarding the financial
condition of financial institutions with direct or indirect exposure to these countries The default or a
significant decline in the credit rating, of one or more sovereigns or financial institutions could cause severe
stress in the finanaial system It could adversely affect some of the markets in which the Group operates and
the businesses and economic conditton and prospects of the Group’s customers, counterparties or creditors,
directly or indirectly, in ways which are difficult to predict The Group 1S monitoring its exposure In these
markets and has put steps in place to imit exposure to these risks
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4. Exchange rates
The Group uses the average of exchange rates prevailing during the year to translate the results and cash flows

of overseas subsidianies and joint ventures into Sterling and year end rates to translate the net assets of those
undertakings The currencies which most influence these translations and the relevant exchange rates were

2012 2011
Average rates:
£/USS 1.59 161
£/Euro 1.23 115
£/Yen 127 128
£/Russian Rouble 49,5 473
£/Polish Zloty 5.16 476
Year end rates
£/USS 1.63 155
£/Euro 123 120
£/Yen 141 120
£/Russian Rouble 49.7 499
£/Polish Zloty 5.03 534
5. Turnover
Turnover by geography 2012 2011
£'000 £'000
North America 571,254 715,443
Europe 504,131 560,075
International 258,443 256,739
Corporate 3,621 4,255
1,337,449 1,536,512
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6. Operating Profit
2012 2011
£'000 (restated)
£'000
The following items have been included in operating
profit:
Employee costs {Note 7) 73,479 74,862
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 370 936
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 15) 33,890 34,771
Write-off of intangible assets {Note 15) 254,538 28,167
Gain on acquisition of joint venture {Note 27) (517,392) -
Net foreign exchange {gains)/losses (14,139) 6,875
Inventories
Cost of inventones included in cost of sales 200,713 208,702
Operating lease rentals
Minimum lease payments 468 526
Contingent rents 261 218
Sub-lease payments - 145
Fees payahle to the Company's auditor and its associates
Audit of parent company and consolidated 614 458
financial statements
Audit of finanaial statements of the Group's UK 340 387
and overseas subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation
Audit and assurance services 954 845
All other services, including regulatory, comphance and 835 134
treasury related services
1,789 979

7. Employee Costs

All individuals performing service for the Group are employed and remunerated by Group companies A
management charge from GlaxoSmithKline Services Unlimited includes an element relating to share based
payments, as calculated under IFRS 2 - Share Based Payments

In addition, GlaxoSrmithKhine affiliates operate pension schemes in which the Group's UK and US employees
participate These schemes include defined benefit arrangements where the assets are held independently of
the Group's finances and which are funded partly by contrnibutions from members and partly by contributions
from the GlaxoSmithKhne affiliates at rates advised by independent professionally qualified actuaries

The management fee from GlaxoSmithKline affiliates includes an element relating to the pension
arrangements for the Group's UK and US employees calculated as if the arrangements were on a defined
contribution basis The underlying assets and habihities of the schemes cover a number of UK and US
undertakings and cannot readily be split between each Group undertaking on a consistent and reliable basis

Full details of the UK and US pension schemes and employee share schemes can be found in the Annual Report
of GlaxoSmithKhne plc for the year ended 31st December 2012

The Group also operates some overseas pension arrangements covering obligations to provide pensions to
retired employees These arrangements have been developed in accordance with local practices in the
countries concerned Pension benefits can be provided by state schemes, by defined contribution schemes,
whereby retirement benefits are determined by the value of funds ansing from contributions paid in respect of
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each employee, or by defined benefit schemes, whereby retirement benefits are based on employee

pensionable remuneration and length of service

2012 2011

(restated)

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 57,144 60,396

Social security costs 6,336 6,938

State Pension and other post-employment costs 1,179 1,066

Cost of share-based incentive plans 2,982 2,573

Severance and other costs from integration and restructuring 5,338 3,889
activities

73,479 74,862

2012 2011

The average number of persons employed by the Group {including 491 510

Directors) during the year

All employees are employed to conduct selling, general and admimistration activities 2011 has been restated
to include costs of £14 5m which were omitted in the 2011 Annual Report This restatement relates to this

note only, and has no impact on the 2011 income statement

The average number of Group employees excludes temporary and contract staff The average number of

persons employed by the Company in 2012 was nil (2011 nil)

The compensation of the Directors and Senior Management (members of the ViV Executive Team) in

aggregate was as follows

2012 2011

{restated)

£000 £'000

Wages and salarnes 3,481 3,395
Social security costs 279 273
Pension and other post-employment costs 506 415
Cost of share-based incentive plans 985 626
5,251 4,709

2011 has been restated to exclude costs of £1 8m which were incorrectly included in the 2011 Annual Report

This restatement relates to this note only, and has no iImpact on the 2011 income statement

Only one Director I1s remunerated by the Group details of which are below

2012 2011

£'000 £'000

Fees and salaries 390 417
Other benefits 99 25
Annual bonus 380 388
869 830

Retirement benefits accrued under defined benefit schemes sponsored by sister companies within the GSK

group for one Director

One Director recewed shares and share options under long term incentive plans in respect of qualifying

services to the Group No share options were exercised duning the year
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8. Finance income

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Interest iIncome arising from
Cash and cash equivalents 2,730 1,952
Receivables - 850
Fair value movements on derivatives at fair value through 119 95
profit and loss
2,849 2,897
9. Finance expense
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Interest expense ansing on
Financial habilities at amortised cost 3,547 3,749
Fair value movements on derivatives at fair value through 409 487
profit and loss
Re-measurement of preferential dividends hability 419,484 105,872
Release of preferential dvidend lability (144,986) {82,960)
Unwinding of discounts on preferential dividends hability 66,168 61,014
Unwinding of discounts on other long-term payables 2 2
344,624 92,164

The impact of re-measurement of preferential dividends hability 1s lugh as a result of progression of pipeline

products
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10. Joint ventures

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
At 1st January 8,271 9,606
Exchange adjustments (168) (147)
Additions 39,451 31,804
Other movement (7,392) -
Dividends received from joint ventures {2,418) (2,405)
Share of after tax losses in Joint venture (33,290) {30,587)
Al 31st December 4,454 8,271

Investments n Joint ventures principally anse from 50% nterests in two joint ventures, Shionogi-Viv
Healthcare joint venture, which is developing specified chemical compounds, and ViV Healthcare Shire Canada
Inc, which primarily co-markets Combrvir, Trizivir and Epivir in certain territories During the year, the Group
received a dividend of £2 4 mulhon (2011 £2 4 millien) from ViV Healthcare Shire Canada Inc and contributed
£39 5 million (2011 £31 8 milhon) to the Shionogi-Viv Healthcare joint venture

On 29th October 2012, Viv Healthcare acquired the 50% share of the Shionog)-VnV Healthcare joint venture
previously held by Shionogl & Co, Ltd At that date the joint venture was dissolved and ViV Healthcare now
accounts for its investment as a subsidiary company (See note 27 ‘Acquisitions’) The dissolution resulted In
return of cash to shareholders of £7 4 million

Country of

incorporation Percentage
Name Principal activity  or registration shareholding
ViV Healthcare Shire Canada Inc Marketing Canada 50
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint ventures at 31% December 2012 1s set out
below

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Income statement
Turnover 25,433 27,155
Expenses (92,013} (88,329}
Loss after tax (66,580) (61,174)
Balance Sheet
Assets 5,567 43,997
Liabilities (1,299) (30,485)
Net Assets 4,268 13,512
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11. Taxation

Taxation charge based on profits for the year 2012 2011
£'000 £'000
UK corporation tax at the UK statutory rate 119,816 94,965
Overseas taxation 131,914 160,789
Current taxation 251,730 255,754
Deferred taxation (102,920) {23,384)
148,810 232,370
Reconciliation of the taxation rate on Group profits 2012 2011
% %
UK statutory rate of taxation 24.5 265
Differences in overseas taxation rates 4.9 67
Changes In tax rates (1.0) (2 0)
R&D credits 0.0 (01)
Non-deductible expenses/{non-taxable income) {3 5) 51
Other differences 0.0 01
Prior year items (1.6) (0 8)
Tax rate 23.3 355
Tax on items charged to equity and statement of comprehensive 2012 2011
income £'000 £'000
Current taxation
Foreign exchange movements - 555
- 555
Deferred taxation
Defined benefit plans 143 229
143 229
Total credit to equity and statement of comprehensive iIncome 143 784

All of the above items have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income

The Group operates in countries where the tax rate differs from the UK tax rate The impact of these overseas
taxes on the overali rate of tax 1s shown above

The Group 1s required under IFRS to create a deferred tax asset in respect of unrealised intercompany profit
arising on inventory held by the Group at the year-end by applying the tax rate of the country in which the
inventory 15 held {rather than the tax rate of the country where the profit was oniginally made and the tax paid,
which 1s the practice under UK and US GAAP)

No provisien has been made for taxation which would arnise on the distribution of profits retained by overseas
subsidiaries on the grounds that the Group 15 able to control the timing of the reversal of these temporary
differences and 1t 15 probable that they will not reverse in the future The aggregate amount of these
unremitted profits at the balance sheet date was approximately £201 milon (2011 £208 million) The
unprovided deferred tax on unremitted earnings at 31st December 2012 15 estimated to be £0 5 milhon {2011
nil), which relates to taxes repayable on repatnation and dividend withholding taxes levied by overseas tax
junisdictions UK legistation relating to company distributions provides exemption from tax for most
repatriated profits, subject to certain exceptions
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Movement in deferred Accelerated  Intangibles Intra- Tax Othernet  Offset within Total
tax assets and capital group losses  temporary countries
liabilities allowances profit differences

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets at 1st 215 2,208 25,585 - 27,569 {9,746) 45,831
January 2012
Deferred tax habilities at - (140,234) - - {143) 9,746 (130,631)
1st January 2012
At 1st January 2012 215 (138,026} 25,585 - 27,426 - (84,800)
Exchange adjustments (1) 374 - - {1,520) - {1,147}
Credit/{charge) to income 142 82,301 5,156 - 15,321 - 102,920
statement
Credit to statement of - - - - 143 - 143
comprehensive income
Acquisition - (222,608} - - - - {222,608}
At 31st December 2012 356 (277,959) 30,741 - 41,370 - {205,492)
Deferred tax assets at 356 149,262 30,741 - 41,572 (154,716) 67,215

31st December 2012

Deferred tax habilities at - (427,221) - - {202) 154,716 (272,707)
31st December 2012

The deferred tax credit to iIncome relating to changes in tax rates i1s £6 4 million {2011 £12 8 miliion) Al other
deferred tax movements arise from the orgination and reversal of temporary differences Other net
temporary differences include accrued expenses and other provisions

At 31st December 2012, the Group had recognised a deferred tax asset of nil (2011 nil) in respect of Income
tax losses of approximately nil (2011 nil} The Group had no capital losses at 31st December 2011 (2010 nil)
Deferred tax assets are recognised where 1t 15 probable that future taxable profit will be available to utilise
losses

Factors affecting the tax charge in future years

As a global organisation there are many factors which could affect the future effective tax rate of the Group
The mix of profits across different territories, transfer pricing and other disputes with tax authonties can all
have a significant impact on the Group’s effective tax rate

Changes to tax legislation in territories where ViV has business operations could also affect the Group's
effective tax rate The UK Government has enacted some significant changes to the UK taxation system In
December 2012, the UK Government announced that as part of the ongoing phased reduction in the main rate
of corporation tax, the mamn rate will reduce further to 21% from Apnl 2014 The deferred tax movements
reflect the reduction in the UK tax rate from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 April 2012, and to 23% with effect
from 1 April 2013, as these have been substantively enacted !n July 2012, the UK Government enacted
legislation to introduce a patent box regime which will apply a reduced rate of corporation tax to income from
patents with effect from Apnl 2013 In July 2012, the UK Government also enacted legislation relating to
controlled foreign companies, which will come into effect from 1 January 2013
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12. Dividends

The Directors propose an intenim ordinary dividend of £450 million in respect of the year ended 31st
December 2012 heing £55,036 per Class A Share, £22,194 per Class B Share and £21,429 per Class C Share

The Directors will propose a preferential dividend in respect of the year ended 31st December 2012 at a future
date (2011 £37 million)

The Directors proposed and paid two interrm ordinary dividends amounting to £306 million and one
preferential dvidend of £37 million in respect of the year ended 31st December 2011

The first interim ordinary dividend of £170 million being £20,791 per Class A Share, £8,385 per Class B Share
and £8,095 per Class C Share was paid on the 4th April 2012

The second intenim ordinary dividend of £136 million being £16,634 per Class A Share, £6,708 per Class B Share
and £6,477 per Class C Share was paid on the 20th June 2012

13. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Assets In Land and

equipment construction Buildings Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost at 1st January 2011 34 , 142 - 176
Exchange adjustments 36 - 1 37
Additions 1,997 - 16 2,013
Transfer to Plant and equipment 142 (142) - -
Disposals and write-off (200} - - (200)
Cost at 31st December 2011 2,009 - 17 2,026
Exchange adjustments (85} - (3) (88)
Additions 545 - - 545
Disposals and write-off (170} - - (170)
Cost at 31st December 2012 2,299 - 14 2,313
Depreciation at 1st January 2011 (30) - - (30)
Exchange adjustments (24) - - (24)
Charge for the year (936) - - (936)
Depreciation at 31st December 2011 (990) - - (990)
Exchange adjustments 50 - - 50
Charge for the year (370) - - (370)
Disposals and wnite-off 12 - - 12
Depreciation at 31st December 2012 (1,298) - - {1,298)
Impairment at 31st December 2011 {12) - - (12)
Exchange adjustments 1 - - 1
Impairment losses - - - -
Impairment at 31st December 2012 {11) - - (11)
Net book value at 31st December 2011 1,007 - 17 1,024
Net book value at 31st December 2012 990 - 14 1,004

Included in plant and equipment are leased assets with a cost of £2 3 million (2011 £2 0 million), accumulated
depreciation of £1 3 million (2011 £1 0 millicn}, and a net book value of £1 0 million (2011 £1 0 million)
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14. Goodwill

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Cost at 1st January 210,695 212,611
Exchange adjustments {7,516) {1,916)
Cost at 31st December 203,179 210,695
Net book value at 1st January 210,695 212,611
Net book value at 31st December 203,179 210,695

Goodwill predominantly relates to the acquisition of the Pfizer HIV business in 2009

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating units which are tested for impairment at least annually The cash
generating units to which the goodwill 1s allocated 1s as follows North Amenca £94 4 rillion (2011 £99 8
million), Europe £107 5 milhon {2011 £109 5 million) and International £1 3 million (2011 £1 4 million)

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units are assessed using a fair value less costs to sell model
Fair value 1s calculated using a discounted cash flow model based on the Group's acquisition valuation model
A post-tax discount rate of 10 0% 1s applied to the projected risk-adjusted post-tax cash flows and terminal
value {derived using a 0% terminal growth rate) The penod of specfic forecast cash flows used in the
valuation model 1s 5 years

Key assumptions include the sales growth rates (determined by internal forecasts, based on internal and
external market information), profit margins (determined by past experience and adjusted for expected
changes), discount rates (based on Group WACC), and terminal growth rate based on management’s estimate
of future long-term average growth rates

Testing completed in 2012 identified no impairments of goodwill The valuations indicate sufficient headroom
such that a reasonably possible change to key assumptions 1s unlikely to result in an impairment of the related
goodwill
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15. Other intangible assets

Computer Licences,
software patents etc Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost at 1st January 2011 5,727 655,939 661,666
Exchange adjustments 23 (1,004) (981)
Disposals and write-offs - (28,167) (28,167)
Cost at 31st December 2011 5,750 626,768 632,518
Exchange adjustments (62) (2,522) (2,584)
Additions - 1,779,591 1,779,591
Disposal and write-off - (254,538) (254,538)
Cost at 31st December 2012 5,688 2,149,299 2,154,987
Amortisation at 1st January 2011 (847} (38,319) (39,166)
Exchange adjustments {6) (282) (288)
Charge for the year (2,178) (32,593) (34,771)
Amortisation at 31st December 2011 (3,031) (71,194) (74,225)
Exchange adjustments 23 1,051 1,074
Charge for the year (1,242) {32,648) (33,890)
Amortisation at 31st December 2012 (4,250) (102,791) (107,041)
Impairments at 1st January 2011 - - -
Exchange adjustments - - -
Impairment losses (558} - (558)
Impairments at 31" December 2011 {558) - (558)
Exchange adjustments - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment at 31st December 2012 {558) - (558)
Net book value at 31st December 2011 2,161 555,574 857,735
Net book value at 31st December 2012 880 2,046,508 2,047,388

Amortisation of licences and patents on marketed products has been charged through cost of sales in the
income statement Wrnite-offs of £254 5 million were included In research and development in 2012 (2011
£28 2 millien) n refation to assets no longer being actively pursued Additions include £1,777 0 million in

relation to a business acquisition {refer to note 27)

The book values of material assets are analysed as follows

2012 2011

Asset description End of amortisation period £'000 £'000
Marketed asset 2030 251,071 274,298
Assets in development N/A 1,777,000 254,538
Other assets various 19,317 28,899
2,047,388 557,735
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16. Other non-current assets

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Pension schemes in surplus 30 31
Other receivables 122 515
152 546
17. Inventories
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Work In progress 7,444 5,429
Finished goods 9,014 31,580
16,458 37,009
18. Trade and other receivables
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Trade receivables 254,798 326,547
Other prepayments and accrued tncome 544 590
interest receivable 3 2
Employee loans and advances 76 237
Other recevables 16,581 74,844
272,002 402,220
Bad and doubtful debt provision
At start of year {6,036} (993)
Exchange adjustments 169 (170)
Charge for the year {4,204) (5,797)
Subsequent recoveries of amounts provided for 3,075 866
Utilised 350 58
At 31st December {6,646) {6,036)
19. Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 58,960 21,756
Short-term deposits 696,852 496,647
755,812 518,403
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20. Trade and other payables

2012 2011

£'000 £'000

Trade payables 63,736 106,088
Wages and salaries 15,210 14,153
Social security 2,603 1,709
Other payables 8,085 7,314
Deferred income 559 1,133
Customer return and rebate accruals 149,086 168,182
Other accruals 148,339 177,117
Preferential dividends due within one year 17,882 36,806
405,500 512,502

Customer return and rebate accruals are provided for by the Group at the point of sale in respect of the
estimated rebates, discounts or allowances payable to customers, principally in the USA Provisions are made
at the time of sale but the actual amounts paid are based on claims made some time after the imitial
recognition of the sale As the amounts are estimated they may not fully reflect the final outcome and the
amounts are subject to change dependent upon, amongst other things, the types of buying group and product
sales mix The level of provision 1s reviewed and adjusted quarterly in the hight of historic experience of actual
rebates, discounts or allowances given and returns made and any changes in arrangements Future events

could cause the assumptions on which the provisions are based to change, which could affect the future

resuits of the Group

21. Other Provisions

Employee
related Other

provisions provisions Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

At 1st January 2011 4,351 135 4,486
Exchange adjustments {95) {13) {108)
Charge for the year 2,749 249 2,998
Utilised (1,093) - (1,003)
Increase in pensions obligations 580 - 580
Reclassifications and other movements 43 - 43
At 31st December 2011 6,535 371 6,906
Exchange adjustments (184) (8) {192)
Charge for the year 5,153 (27) 5,126
Utilised (1,991) (40) (2,031)
Increase in pensions obligations 1,240 - 1,240
Rectassifications and other movements 192 {192) -
At 31st December 2012 10,945 104 11,049
To be settled withun one year 772 104 876
To be settled after one year 10,173 - 10,173
At 31st December 2012 10,945 104 11,049

Employee related provisions include a vanety of benefits accruing to employees under state pension schemes,
small country specific pension schemes, severance costs, jubilee awards and other long-service benefits
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22. Other non-current liabilities

Contingent

Preferential consideration
dividends lhability Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 31st December 2011 626,730 - 7 626,737
Re-measurement 419,484 - - 419,484
Intangible write-off {144,986} - - (144,986)
Addition due to acquisition of business 37,000 659,000 - 696,000
Unwinding 66,168 10,893 - 77,061
Transfer to trade and other payables {17,882) - - {17,882)
Other movements {59) - {6) (65}
As at 31st December 2012 986,455 669,853 1 1,656,349

Preferential dividends are discussed further in Notes 2 and 3 Contingent consideration 1s discussed further in Note 3

23. Share Capital

Class A shares Class B shares Class C Shares Class D1 & D2 Total
Shares

Number £000 Number £'000 Number £'000 Number £'G00 Number £'000
At 1st January 6,950 7 2,798 3 252 - - - 10,000 10
2011
At 31st December 6,950 7 2,798 3 252 - - - 10,000 10
2011
Issue of new shares - - - - - - 1,112 1 1,112 1
At 31st December 6,950 7 2,798 3 252 - 1,112 1 11,112 11

2012

Holders of Class A, B and C Shares are entitled to both preferential dividends and ordinary dividends As part of the
acquisition ViV Healthcare Limited 1ssued a new class of D1 and D2 shares to Shionogi in return for their 50% investment
in Joint venture Class D shares are sphit into Class D1 and Class D2 Class D1 are entitled to ordinary dividends and Class
D2 are entitled to Shionog! preferred ordinary dividend Preferential dividends are based on the performance of certain
assets and are payable n full prior to any ordinary dividend Any amounts that cannot be paid due to nsufficient
distnibutable reserves will be carried forward to future years and will be paid in preference to any subsequently declared

dividend

Voting nights are in line with equity shares as defined in the Shareholders Agreement, subject to certain extraordinary

corporate matters, which require pnior wntten approval of Pfizer and/or Shionogi
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24. Movements in equity

Retained earnings, merger reserve, and other reserves amounted to £665 9 mullion at 31st December 2012
{2011 £491 5 nmillion) of which a loss of £84 5 million (2011 loss £61 2 million) relates to joint ventures The
cumulative translation exchange in equity 1s shown below m the following table

Retained Merger Other
earnings Reserve Reserves Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 2011 4,334 1,462 - 5,796
Exchange movements on overseas net assets (14,147) 133 - (14,014)
At 31st December 2011 (9,813) 1,595 - {8,218)
Exchange movements on overseas net assets (10,419) (353} - (10,772)
At 31st December 2012 (20,232) 1,242 - (18,990)

Other reserves do not affect the calculation of the Company’s realised profits available for distnbution
25. Related party transactions

On 29th October 2012 VuV Healthcare acquired the 50% share of the Shionogi-VuV Healthcare joint venture
previously held by Shienogi & Co, Ltd in return for a 10% shareholding in ViV Healthcare Limited and
additional contingent consideration payable based on the future sales performance of compounds developed
in the joint venture Shionog & Co, Ltd 15 also entitled to “Marketed Products Dividends” similar to those to
which GSK and Pfizer are entitled The Group 1s 76 5% owned by GlaxoSmithKline Mercury Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the GlaxoSmithKline plc group of companies), 12 4% by PHIVCO Luxembourg Sarl and
1 1% by PHIVCO Corp {both members of the Pfizer Inc group of companies) and 10% by Shionog & Co, Ltd
During the year the Group undertook significant transactions with entities from within each of the
GlaxoSmithKline, Pfizer and Shionogi groups of companies

Entrties from within the GlaxoSmithKline group of companies supphed goods to and purchased goods from the
Group during the year In addition, entities from within the GlaxoSmithKline group of companies were engaged
to provide support function services to the Group under 'Transitional Services Agreements' including
regulatory and safety services, financial management and reporting, human resources, payrolt services, IT
support, property management, fegal services, contract manufacturing, management of the Group’s UK and
US penston schemes, and management of the Group’s employee share schemes In addition, the Group
operates separate agreements with GlaxoSmithKline affihates for the provision of research and development
and for toll-manufacturing services

Entities from within the Pfizer group of companies supplied goods to the Group during the year as well as
providing regulatory, financial reporting and legal services under a ‘Transitional Services Agreement' In
addition, the Group operates separate agreements with Pfizer affiliates for the prowision of research and
development and for toll-manufactuning services

Entities from within the Shionog! group of companies provided research and development services to the
Group during the year under a ‘Services Agreement’ and a ‘Research and Development’ Agreement In
addition there 15 an ‘AP| Supply Agreement’ under which entities from within the Shionog group of companies
supply goods to the Group, but no such supply took place in 2012

During the formation of the Group and on the subsequent acquisition of the former Shionogi-ViV Healthcare
joint venture arrangernents were entered into for the payment of preferential dividends to GlaxoSmithKline,
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Pfizer and Shionogi subject to achidving agreed sales targets and development milestones Once the
preferential dividends become payable they are to be paid prior to the payment of an ordinary dividend to the
Group’s shareholders Amounts included within the balance sheet for the expected payments to each party
are included in the table below

The Group also recognises net economic benefit payments receivable from other GlaxoSmithKline and Pfizer
group companies These payments arnise where HIV products are continuing to be sold by other
GlaxoSmithKhne ple and Pfizer Inc group companies because the VuVv Healthcare trading entity 1s not yet
cperational or due to legal or local operating restrictions At the transaction date the future value of these
payments was estimated and deemed part of the initial contribution of assets

The table below outlines the amounts of the relevant transactions and outstanding amounts at the end of the
financial year

GlaxoSmithKline Pfizer Shionogi
group of companies group of companies group of companies
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Sale of goods 222,677 236,527 2,535 4,255 - -
Purchase of goods and 275,864 429,130 99,358 126,188 - -
SEervices
Net amounts payable at (19,716) (18,771} {870) {1,373) (128) -
31st December
Preferential Dividend {774,611) (352,425) {195,475) (311,111) (34,251) -
liabihty
Contingent consideration - - - - {669,893) -
habihity

During the year, both the Group and Shire Canada Inc entered into transactions with their 50/50 Canadian
Joint venture company i support of the selling and marketing activities conducted by that joint venture
company During 2012, the Group provided services to the joint venture of £5 0 million {2011 £5 1 milion) At
31st December 2012, the balance due from the Group to the joint venture was £0 1 million (2011 £2 8 million)

Cnly one Director 1s remunerated by the Group, details of which can be found 1n the Employee Costs note 7
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26. Adjustments reconciling profit after tax to operating cash flows

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Profit after tax 492,239 421,666
Add back
Tax on profits 148,810 232,370
Share of after-tax losses of joint ventures 33,290 30,587
Finance expense net of finance income 341,775 89,267
Unwinding of contingent consideration 10,893 -
Depreciation 370 936
Amortisation of intangible assets 33,890 34,771
Asset write-off 254,538 28,729
Gain on acquisition of joint venture (517,392} -
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (a0) {106}
Changes in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 18,101 (2,759}
Decrease/(Increase) in trade recevables 61,852 (65,495}
Decrease/(Increase) in other recevables 59,228 {6,448}
(Decrease) in trade payables (40,627} (11,563}
{Decrease) in other payables (31,314) (57,917}
Increase in pension and other pravisions 3,006 1,708
Other 10,698 2,918

387,078 276,998

Cash generated from operations 879,317 698,664
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27. Acquisitions

Book Fair value Fair value
value adjustments
£'000 £'000 £'000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets - 1,777,000 1,777,000
Deferred tax provision - (369,921) {369,921)
- 1,407,079 1,407,079
Negative Goodwill - (292,892) {292,892)
- 1,114,187 1,114,187
Consideration settled by shares - 341,000 341,000
Shionogi preferred crdinary dividend entitlement - 37,000 37,000
Contingent consideration - 659,000 659,000
Deferred tax on contingent consideration - (147,313) (147,313)
Fair value of Investment in joint venture converted into subsidiary - 255,500 255,500
Loss on settlement of pre-existing relationships - {31,000) (31,000)
Total consideration - 1,114,187 1,114,187

On 29th October 2012, ViV acquired the 50% share of the Shionogi-VilV Healthcare joint venture previously held
by Shionogi & Co, Ltd The assets include the investigational medicine dolutegravir and early stage integrase
inhibitor compounds The compounds are In development and do not currently generate revenue

The net assets acquired comprise £1,777 0 million of intangible assets and £369 9 million of deferred tax lability
Negative goodwill of £292 9 million was recognised as a gain in the income statement This has ansen from the
differing assessments of valuations between the parties, principally as a result of deferring tax payment obligations
between ViV Healthcare Group and its shareholders

Total consideration comprised a 10% equity stake in VitV Healthcare valued at £341 0 million, preferred ordinary
dividend entitlement of £37 0 million, fair value of Viv’s existing 50% investment in joint venture of £255 5 million
and contingent consideration payable in cash in the future valued at £659 0 million, together with a deferred tax
asset of £147 3 million and a loss on settlement of pre-existing relationships of £31 0 mullion

The gain on acquisition of the joint venture was £517 4 million, comprising negative goodwill of £292 9 milhion and
a gain ansing from the fair value of the Group’s existing holding in the Jjoint venture of £255 5 milhon less loss on
settlement of pre-existing relationships of £31 0 millicn

The contingent consideration 1s payable based on the future sales performance of compounds developed by the
Joint venture, If they become marketed products, and so the total amount payable 1s unlimited

The results of the acquired business are reported as part of the group The transaction has been accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting

Acquisition costs expensed 1n 2012 arising on this acquisition amounted to £1 6 million

28. Commitments

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Commitments under non-cancellable leases and other contracts
Payments due within one year 1,343 5,434
Payments due between one and five years 1,919 855
Payments due after five years 158 102
Total commitments 3,420 6,391
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29. Financial instruments and related disclosures

The Group reports in Sterling and pays dividends out of Sterling profits GSK's Corporate Treasury function 15
employed as a service provider to manage and monitor the Group's external and internal funding
requirements and financial risks in support of the Group's strategic objectives Treasury activities are governed
by policies and procedures approved by the Group Board of Directors, most recently on 19th March 2010

The group operates on a global basis, through a number of subsidiary companies and the existing sales
networks of GlaxoSmithKline plc and Pfizer plc

A Treasury meeting, chaired by our Chief Financial Officer {CFO), takes place on a monthly basis to review
Treasury activities Its members receive management information relating te Treasury activities GSK's internal
auditors review the Treasury internal control environment regularly as part of their review of G5K's Treasury
function

The Group may use a vanety of financial instruments to finance i1ts operations and derivative financial
tnstruments to manage risks from these operations These derivatives, principally compnising ferward foreign
currency contracts and currency swaps, are used to manage exposure to funding risks from changes in foreign
exchange rates The Group does not hold or 1ssue derwvatives for speculative purposes and our Treasury
policies specifically prohibit such activity

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group are able to operate as going concerns whilst
availing themselves of intercompany funding where appropriate The capital structure of the Group consists
wholly of shareholders’ equity (see “Consolidated statement of changes in equity” on page 16) The Board
reviews the Group’s annual diwvidend policy which 1s established in accordance with parameters set in the
Shareholders’ Agreement between GSK, Pfizer and Shionog)

with significant levels of patent or trademark protection, the Group's pharmaceutical products compete
largely on product efficacy or differentiation rather than on price

Selling margins are sufficient to cover hormal operating costs and our operations are cash generative

Operating cash flow 15 used to fund investment in research and development of new products It s also used to
make routine outflows of capital expenditure, tax and dividends

Lquidity risk

The Group benefits from strong positive cash flow from operating units and has substantial cash and cash
equivalents, which amounted to £755 8 million at 31st December 2012 (2011 £518 4 million)

Market risk
Interest rate risk management

The Group has no significant external debt and therefore no sigmificant exposure to changes tn interest rates
The Group earns Iinterest income on its cash and therefore benefits from an increase in interest rates The
impact of a decrease in interest rates 1s imited (see interest rate sensitivity)
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Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency transaction exposures arising on internal and external trade flows are not hedged The
exposure of overseas operating subsidiaries to transaction risk 15 managed by matching local currency income
with local currency costs and by maintaining intercompany payment terms of 30 days or less Exceptional
foreign currency cash flows may be hedged selectively as approved by the CFO We manage the cash surpluses
or borrowing regwrements of subsidiary companies centrally using forward contracts to hedge future
repayments back into the onginating currency

Derivative financial instruments

The principal amount on foreign exchange contracts of £123 0 million {2011 £166 0 milhon) 15 the gross total
of outstanding positions at the balance sheet date All contracts are for periods of 12 months or less At 31st
December 2012, the Group held outstanding foreign exchange contracts consisting primarily of currency swaps
with a total farr value of £06 milien debit (2011 £0 03 milhion credit) which represent hedges of
intercompany loans and deposits, but are not designated as accounting hedges Changes in fair value are taken
to profit and loss in the period to offset the exchange gains and losses on the related intercompany lending
and borrowing

Credit nisk

The Group considers its maximum credit risk to be £1,017 4 million (2011 £882 3 milhion) which 1s the total of
the Group’s financial assets This represents £755 8 milhon of cash and cash equivalents and £261 6 million of
trade and other receivables and dernwvative financial assets See page 48 for details on the Group’s total
financial assets

The Group’s greatest concentration of credit risk 1s £340 4 mitlion deposited with HSBC In 2011, the greatest
concentration of credit nsk was £203 6 millhon invested in US Treasury and Treasury repo only money market
funds

Treasury-related credit risk

The Group has continued to maintain its conservative approach to counterparty risk throughout 2012 The
aggregate credit risk in respect of financial instruments that the Group may have with one counterparty 1s
limited by reference to the long-term credit ratings assigned for that counterparty by Moody’s Investors

Service (“Moody’s”) and Standard and Poor’s The table below sets out the credit ratings of counterparties for
cash and cash equivalents The dervatives held by the group are not significant

Credit rating of counterparty

AaafAAA  Aal/AA+  Aa2/AA Aa3/AA- Al/A+ AZ/A A3/A- Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 £'000
2012
Bank balances and deposits - - - 340,419 192,176 51,580 8,026 592,201
US Treasury & Treasury repo only - 163,611 - - - - - 163,611
money market funds
Total - 163,611 - 340,419 192,176 51,580 8,026 755,812
2011
Bank batances and deposits - - - 104,608 202,017 8,163 - 314,788
US Treasury & Treasury repo only - 203,615 - - - - - 203,615
money market funds
Total - 203,615 - 104,608 202,017 3,163 - 518,403
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The credit ratings in the above tables are as assigned by Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s respectively Where
the opimion of the two rating agencies differs, the lower rating of the two 1s assigned to the counterparty

Our centrally managed cash reserves amounted to £685 0 million at 31st December 2012, all available within
three months The Group invests centrally managed liqued assets in bank deposits and AAA/Aaa US Treasury
and Treasury repo only money market funds (which bear credit exposure to the US Government {Aaa/AA+
rated)} with a mimimum short-term credit rating of A-1/P-1

The remaining cash balances are used by subsidiary entities in funding their working capital requirements

Global counterparty hmits are assigned to each of Vuv Healthcare’s banking and investment counterparties
based on long-term credit ratings from Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s The Group’s usage of these limits 1s
monitored dally by GSK's Corporate Compliance Officer (CCO) who operates independently from GSK
Corporate Treasury Any breach of these limits would be reported to the CFO immediately The CCO also
monitors the credit rating of these counterparties and, when changes in ratings occur, notifies GSK’'s Corporate
Treasury so that changes can be made to investment levels or authority imits as appropriate

Wholesale and retail credit risk

The Group employs GSK as a service provider to monitor credit risk relating to key wholesalers These activities
include a review of their quarterly financial information and Standard & Poor’s credit ratings, development of
internal risk ratings, and the establishment and periodic review of credit hmits The results of these reviews are
submitted to ViV Healthcare’s management to support the rnisk management process

Cutside Japan and the USA, no customer accounts for more than 5% of the Group’s trade recevables balance

In Japan, 100% of the Group’s sales are to GSK Japan At 31st December 2012, the Group had trade
receivables due from GSK Japan totalling £20 4m, with negligible credit risk In the USA, in line with other
pharmaceutical companies, the Group selis 1ts products to a small number of wholesalers in addition to
hospitals, pharmacies, physicians and other groups Sales to the three largest wholesalers amount to
approximately 76% of the Group’s US sales At 31st December 2012, the Group had trade receivables due from
these three wholesalers totalling £51 4 milion The Group 1s exposed to a concentration of credit nisk In
respect of these wholesalers such that, If one or more of them encounters financial difficulty, 1t could
matenally and adversely affect the Group’s financial results However, the Group believes there 15 no further
credit risk provision required in excess of the normal provision for bad and doubtful debts (see Note 18, ‘Trade
and other recevables’)

Fair value of financial assets and habilities

The table on page 48 presents the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
habilities at 31st December 2012 and 315t December 2011 The fair values of the financial assets and habthities
are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or iquidation sale

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

e (Cash and cash equivalents - approximates to the carrying amount

e Short-term loans and overdrafts - approximates to the carrying amount because of the short maturity
of these instruments

¢ Forward exchange contracts - based on market data and exchange rates at the balance sheet date

¢ Currency swaps - based on market data at the balance sheet date

e Recevables and payables - approximates to the carrying amount

Page | 47




VuV Healthcare Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31st December 2012

s Preferential dividends - approximates to the carrying amount
e Contingent consideration for business acquisitions — based on present values of expected future

contractual cash flows

Financial assets and financial habilities

2012 2011
Carrying Carrying
value and value and
Fair value Fair value
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 755,812 518,403
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables and certain Other non-current 260,831 363,367
assets in scope of 1AS 39
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives classified as held for trading under IAS 39 817 566
Total financial assets 1,017,460 882,336
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings
Bank loans and overdrafts (8,558) (46)
Obligations under finance leases {714) (875)
Total borrowings (9,272) (921)
Trade and other payables, and certain Other non-current labilities
In scope of 1AS 39 {1,382,866}) {1,132,919)
Financial habiities at fair value through profit or loss
Other non-current habibties in scope of IAS 39 (6649,893) -
Denwvatives classified as held for trading under |AS 39 (233) (535}
Total financial habilities {2,062,264) (1,134,375}
Net financial habilities {1,044,804) (252,035}

Held for trading derivatives comprise foreign exchange contracts

Financial assets and liabihttes held at fair value are categonised by the valuation methodology applied In
determining their fair value Where possible, quoted prices in active markets are used {Level 1} Where such
prices are not available, the asset or liability 1s classified as Level 2, prowided all significant inputs to the
valuation model used are based on observable market data If one or more of the significant inputs to the
valuation model 1s not based on cbservable market data, the instrument 1s classified as Level 3
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At 31st December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives classified as held for trading under I1AS 39 - 817 - 817

- 817 - 817

Financial habilities at fair value

Financial habilities at fair value through profit and loss

QOther non-current liabihties 10 scope of IAS 39 - - (669,893) (669,893}
Dernvatives classified as held for trading under 1AS 3¢ - (233) - (233)
- (233} {669,893) (670,126}

At 31st December 2012, the derivatives classified as held for trading under |AS 391n the table on page 48 were the
only financial instruments held at fair value on the balance sheet They were classified as measured using Level 2
valuation methods

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
At 1st lanuary - -
Unwinding of contingent consideration {10,893) -
Contingent consideration habilities for business acquired during the year (659,000) -
At 31st December (669,893) -

Unwinding of contingent consideration of £10 9m attributable to Level 3 financial instruments held at 31%
December 2012 were reported in Selling, general and administration expenses during the year

£669 9 million of the total carrying value of financial instruments measured using Level 3 valuation methods at
31st December 2012 1s contingent consideration for the acquisition of the former Shionogi-VuV Healthcare joint
venture This consideration is expected to be pad over several years and will vary wn line with sales of dolutegrawir,
a product which 15 not yet launched Regulatory applications for marketing approval were submitted in the
European Union, the USA and Canada in December 2012 A probability of success has been applied in valuing the
contingent consideration and success in obtaining regulatory appraval would result in an increase in the habihty
and a charge to the Income Statement of approximately £74 milion if regulatory approval 1s not obtained, no
contingent consideration will be payable and the whole hability will be released through the income statement
The table below shows on an indicative basis the incoeme statement and balance sheet sensitivity to reasonably
possible changes in other key inputs to the valuation of this hability

Increase/({decrease) in financial hability and loss/{gain} in Income statement from change in key inputs 2012
£'000
10% tncrease n sales forecasts 78,000
10% decrease in sales forecasts (77,000)
1% increase in market interest rates (60,000)
1% decrease in market interest rates 68,000
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Trade and other recevables and Other non-current assets in scope of 1AS 39

The following table reconciles financial assets within Trade and other receivables and Other non-current assets

which fall within the scope of 1AS 39 to the relevant balance sheet amounts The financial assets are

predominantly non-interest earming Other assets include tax receivables, pension assets and prepayments,

which are outside the scope of 1AS 39

2012 2011
£'000 £000
Trade and other receivables {note 18) 272,002 402,220
Other non-current assets {note 16) 152 546
272,154 402,766

Analysed as
Financial assets In scope of IAS 39 260,831 363,367
Other assets 11,323 39,399
272,154 402,766

The following table shows the age of such financial assets which are past due and for which no prowision for

bad or doubtful debts has been made

2012 2011

£000 £000

Past due by 1-30 days 7,574 11,124
Past due by 31-90 days 17,451 16,084
Past due by 91-180 days 19,651 21,033
Past due by 181-365 days 19,125 21,451
Past due by more than 365 days 7,853 4,165
71,654 73,857

Trade recevables include £60 million (2011 £66 million) after provisions for bad and doubtful debts which are
past due from state hospital authonties in Italy, Portugal and Spain The Group 1s actively pursuing these debts

and considers the net balance recoverable

Trade and other payables and Other non-current liabilities in scope of 1AS 39

The following table reconciles financial habihties within Trade and other payables and Other non-current
habilities which fall within the scope of 1AS 39 to the relevant balance sheet amounts Accrued wages and

salaries are included within financial labihties Other habilities include payments on account and tax and social

security payables, which are outside the scope of 1AS 39

2012 2011
£000 £'000
Trade and other payables (note 20) {405,500) (512,502)
Cther non-current habilities (note 22) {1,656,349) (626,737}
{(2,061,349) {1,139,239)

Analysed as
Financial habilities in scope of IAS 39 — at amortised cost (1,382,866) {1,132,919)
Financial habilities in scope of IAS 39 — at fair value through profit or loss (669,893) -
Other liabilities (9,090) (6,320}
(2,061,849) (1,139,239}
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the assumption that the amount of net cash {cash and cash
equivalents less overdrafts), the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and dervatives portfolio
and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant Financial instruments
affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits and derivative financial instruments The following
analyses are intended to Jllustrate the sensitivity of such financial instruments to changes in relevant foreign
exchange and interest rates

Foreign exchange sensitivity

The two major foreign currencies in which the Group’s financial instruments are denominated are US Dollars
and Euros The Group has considered movements in these currencies over the last three years and has
concluded that a 20% movement in rates I1s a reasonable benchmark Financial instruments are only
considered sensitive to foreign exchange rates where they are not in the functional currency of the entity that
holds them Intercompany loans which are fully hedged to matunty with a currency swap have been excluded
from this analysis

A 20% movement in rates 1s not deemed to have a material effect on iIncome or egquity
Interest rate sensitivity

The table below shows on an indicative basis the Group’s sensitivity to mnterest rates on its floating rate
Sterling and US dollar financial instruments, bemng the currencies in which the Group has historically held cash
and cash eqguivalents The group has considered movements in these interest rates over the last three years
and has concluded that a 1% {100 basts paints) increase 1s a reasonable benchmark A 1% (100 basis points}
movement in interest rates 15 not deemed to have a material effect on equity.

2012 2011

Increase in Increase in

income Income

£'000 £'000

1% (100 basis points} increase in Sterling interest rates (2011 1%} 6,536 4,289
1% (100 basis points) increase in US dollar interest rates (2011 1%) 1,641 2,039

These interest rates could not be decreased by 1% as they are currently less than 1% The maximum decrease
in iIncome would therefore be limited to £2 4 million and £0 1 million for Sterling and US Dellar interest rates
respectively (2011 £2 8 mullion and £0 3 million} Interest rate movements, foreign currency dervatives, trade
payables, trade recevables and other financial instruments not in net cash do not present a material exposure
to the Group’s balance sheet based on a 1% increase or decrease In these interest rates
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Contractual cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative instruments

The following 15 an analysis of the antictpated contractual cash flows including interest payable for the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis Cash flows in foreign currencies are translated
using spot rates at 31st December The contingent consideration liability ansing on the business acquisition in
2012 adds £1 7 billion of undiscounted expected future cash flows

Obligations Finance  Trade payables Total
under finance chargeon  and Other non-
leases obligations current
under finance habilities
leases

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 315t December 2012
Due in less than one year {300) (3) (396,354) (396,657)
Between one and five years {415) (11) (429,852) (430,728)
Between five and ten years - - (1,491,974) (1,491,974}
Greater than ten years - - (2,130,664) (2,130,664)
Gross contractual cash flows {715) (14) (4,448,844) (4,449,573)
At 31st December 2011
Due in less than one year {340) {7} (506,191) (506,538)
Between one and five years {535) (11} (203,560) (204,106)
Between five and ten years - - {(530,229) (530,229)
Greater than ten years - - (851,797) (851,797)
Gross contractual cash flows {875) (18} (2,091,777) (2,092,670}

The following table provides an analysis of the anticipated contractual cash flows for the Group’s derivative
instruments, using undiscounted cash flows Cash flows in foreign currencies are translated using spot rates at
31st December

2012 2011

Receivables Payables Recewables Payabhles

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Less than one year 123,707 {123,104) 166,160 (166,098)
Grass contractual cash flows 123,707 {123,104) 166,160 {166,098)
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30. Employee share schemes

Incentives In the form of shares in the Group's ultimate parent company, GlaxoSmithKline plc, are provided to
employees under the following share option and share award schemes

Share Option Plan

Opuons were granted to employees to acquire shares at the grant price in GlaxoSmithKline plc Grants are
normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant but may, under certain
circumstances, vest earlier as set out within the varnious scheme rules Options are granted at the market price
ruling at the date of grant The granting of restricted share awards (see Share Value Plan below) has replaced
the granting of options to certain employees as the cost of the scheme more readily equates to the potential
gain to be made by the employee

Performance Share Plan Awards

The Group operates a Performance Share Plan whereby share awards are granted to senior executives at no
cost The percentage of each award that vests 1s based upon the performance of the GSK Group over a three
year measurement period The performance conditions for the awards consist of two parts, each of which
applies to 50% of the award The first part of the performance condition compares GSK's EPS growth to the
increase in the UK Retail Prices Index over the three year measurement period The second part of the
performance condition 15 based on the Group’s three year operating profit compared to the three year plan
Grants of Performance Share Plan awards normally vest at the end of the three year vesting and performance
period and are available for sale at that time

Share value plan

The Group operates a Share Value Plan whereby share awards are granted to employees at no cost There are
no performance criteria attached Grants of Share Value Plan Awards normally vest at the end of the three
year vesting period and are available for sale at that time

The share based compensation charge for the above schemes has been recorded in the income statement as
administrative expenses of £5 0 million {2011 £2 0 million} and 1s considered immaterial for further disclosure

31. Ultimate parent undertaking

GlaxoSmithKline plc, a company registered in England and Wales, 1s the Group’s ultimate parent undertaking
and controlling party The only group of undertakings for which group financial statements are prepared and
which include the results of the ViV Healthcare Limited Group are the consolidated financial statements of
GlaxoSmithKline plc Copies of the consolidated financial statements can be obtained from The Company
Secretary, GlaxoSmithKhne plc, 980 Great West Road, Brentford, Middlesex TW8 9GS The immediate parent
undertaking of the Group 15 GlaxoSmithKline Mercury Limited
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32. Principal group companies

The following represent the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Group at 31st December 2012
Details are given of the principal country of operation, the location of the headquarters, the business sector
and the business activities The equity share capital of these undertakings 1s wholly owned by the Group
except where its percentage interest 1s shown otherwise All companies are incorporated in their principal

country of operation except where stated

Location Subsidiary/Joint Venture Activity %
Europe
England Brentford ViV Healthcare Trading Services UK e f,m 100%
Limited
Brentford ViV Healthcare Overseas Limited h 100%
Brentford VuV Healthcare UK Limited m, I 100%
Brentford VuV Healthcare UK (No 3) Limited R, 1 1060%
Brentford PHIVCO UK Limited h, 100%
Brentford PHIVCO UK Il Limited r 100%
Jersey St Heler ViV Healthcare UK {(No 2) Limited h 100%
St Helier PHIVCO Jersey Limited h 100%
St Heler PHIVCO Jersey Il Limited h 100%
Belgium Wavre ViV Healthcare sprl m 100%
France Marly le Rol ViV Healthcare SAS m 100%
Germany Munich ViV Healthcare GmbH m 100%
Italy Verona ViV Healthcare s r | m 100%
Netherlands Zeist VIV Healthcare BV m 100%
Portugal Alges ViV HIV Healthcare Unipesscal m 100%
Limitada
Spain Madnd Laboratorios ViV Healthcare S L m 100%
Switzerland Muenchenbuchsee ViV Healthcare GmbH m 100%
Americas
USA Wilmington ViV Healthcare Company m, 1 100%
Wilmington PHIVCO-1 LLC | 100%
Wilmington PHIVCO-2 LLC | 100%
Canada Calgary ViV Healthcare ULC m 100%
Mississauga ViV Healthcare Shire Canada Inc m 50%
Mexico Col Santa Fe ViV Healthcare S de RL de CV m 100%
Puerto Rico Guaynabo ViV Healthcare Puerto Rico LLC m 100%
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International

Australia Boronia VnV Healthcare Pty Limited m 100%

South Africa Bryanston ViV Healthcare (South Africa) m 100%
{Proprietary) Limited

lapan Tokyo VIV Healthcare KK m 100%

Russia Moscow ViV Healthcare Trading LLC m 100%

Business activity e exporting, f finance, h holding company, m marketing and trade, | holder of intellectual
property, r research and development

33. Legal Proceedings

On 26th July 2010, the Group received a subpoena from the Eastern District of New York’s US Attorney’s Office
regarding sales and marketing practices for three HIV products, as well as educational programs, grants or
payments to physicians regarding any drug used to treat HIV-infected adults The Group cooperated with the
mvestigation and in September 2012 the government (EDNY) declined to intervene in the case and in
December 2012, requested that the court dismiss the whistleblower case which triggered the subpoena In
December 2012, the whistleblower filed a private action against GlaxoSmithKline ViV Healthcare 15 not a
named defendant in that case but i1s cooperating with GSK/the group in that matter

Epzicom

On 27th June 2011, the Group received notice that Teva Pharmaceuticals (‘Teva’) had amended its ANDA for
Epzicom (the combination of lamivudine and abacawvir) to contain a Paragraph IV certification for two
additional patents listed in the Orange Book, alleging the patents were invalid, unenforceable or not infringed
The patents challenged in this new certification relate to 2 method of treating HIV using the combination
{expiring in 2016), and a certain crystal form of lamivudine (expiring 1n 2016) On 5th August 2011, the Group
filed suit against Teva under the challenged patents in the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware A stay 15 in place against FDA approval of Teva’s ANDA until the earlier of December 2013 or a
decision adverse to the Group in the matter The District Court has consolidated discovery in the Epzicom case
with the Group’s patent infringement suit against Lupin Ltd relating to Trizivir, as both cases involve the same
patent covering the combination of lamivudine and abacavir The case 1s set to go to trial September 2013

Trizivir

On 18th May 2011, the Group received notice that Lupin Ltd (‘Lupin’) had filed an ANDA containing a
Paragraph IV certification for Trizivir (the triple combination of lamivudine, AZT and abacawvir) alleging that
three patents listed in the Orange Book for Trizivir are either invahd, unenforceable or not infringed These
patents relate to a method of treating HIV using the triple combination {expinng in 2016), the hemisulfate salt
of abacavir (expiring in 2018), and a certain crystal form of lamvudine {expining in 2016) On 29th June 2011,
the Group filed suit against Lupin under the patent covering the triple combination in the United States District
Court for the District of Delaware On 31st October 2011, the District Court censolidated the case for discovery
with the Group’s patent infringement suit involving Teva Pharmaceuticals and Epzicom pending n the same
court A stay isin place against FDA approval of Lupin’s ANDA until the earher of November 2013 or a decision
adverse to the Group in the matter The case 15 set to go to trnial fjune 2013
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34. Summary of material differences between IFRS and US GAAP

intangible fixed assets

Under IFRS, contingent milestone payments are recognised as intangible assets at the point that the
contingent event becomes certain Under US GAAP, before a compound receves regulatory approval,
milestone payments made to third parties under contracted research and development arrangements are
recorded as an expense when the specific milestone has been achieved Only once a compound receives
regulatory approval are any subseguent milestone payments recorded in intangible assets

Preferential dividends

Under IFRS, the estimated future preferential dividends payable to both GlaxoSmithKline and Pfizer are
recognised as financial habilities at amortised cost and discounted to account for the change in value over
time Under US GAAP the hability for estimated preferential dividends payable to GlaxoSmithKline does not
meet the conditions for recognition and 1s not contingent consideration ansing on a business combination As
a result the hability for the estimated preferential dvidends payable to GlaxoSmithKline i1s removed from the
balance The impact of the re-measurements of this hability for changes in actual and revised estimated cash
flows and the charge for unwinding of the discount are consequently also removed from the Income
Statement

Taxation

Under IFRS, deferred tax 1s calculated using the tax rates of the inventory-holding companies and provided on
unrealised intra-group profits to the extent that it 1s considered recoverable Under US GAAP the deferred tax
on unrealised intra-group profits 1s calculated using the tax rates of the supplying companies rather than the
inventory-holding companies

Net economic benefit payments

Under IFRS the Group recognises net economic benefit payments receivable from GlaxoSmithKiine and Pfizer
These payments arise where HIV products contributed to the Group by GlaxoSmithKhine and Pfizer are
continuing to be sold by GlaxoSmithKhne or Pfizer companies because the ViV Healtheare trading entity 1S not
yet operational or due to legal or local operating restrictions Under US GAAP the net economic benefit
payments recevable from GlaxoSmithKline are not recogrused as they are due from an entity under common
control Where GlaxoSmithKhine makes a net economic benefit payment under IFRS this 15 treated as the
settlement of the recewvable, under US GAAP this 1s treated as an additional capital contribution

The following 1s a summary of the material adjustments to profits and shareholders’ funds which would be
required iIf US GAAP had been applied instead of IFRS
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Income statement for the year ended 31st December 2012

IFRS Notel WNote2 Note 3 Note 4 US GAAP
2012 2012
£000 £'000
Revenues 1,337,449 - - - - 1,337,449
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales {205,451) - - - - (205,451)
Selling, general and (258,333) - - - - (258,333)
administrative expenses
Research and development (343,782) - - - - {343,782)
expenses
Amortisation of intangible (32,648} - - - - (32,648)
assets
Loss from affiliates (33,290) - - - - {33,290)
Gain on disposal of Joint 517,392 - - - - 517,392
venture
Other income/(deductions) - {340,288) 454,253 - - - 113,965
net
Income from continuing 641,049 454,253 - - - 1,095,302
operations before provision
for taxes on income
Prowvision for taxes on income (148,810} - {3,062) - - (151,872)
Net income 492,239 454,253  {3,062) - - 943,430
Other comprehensive income
Exchange movements on {10,772) - - - - (10,772)
overseas net assets and net
investment hedges
Actuanal (losses) on defined {1,225} - - - - (1,225)
benefit plans
beferred tax on actuarial 143 - - - - 143
movements in defined benefit
plans
Total comprehensive income 480,385 454,253 (3,062} - - 931,576
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Income statement for the year ended 31st December 2011

IFRS Notel Note2 Note 3 Note4  USGAAP
2011 2011
£'000 £'000
Revenues 1,536,512 - - - - 1,536,512
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales {329,999) - - - - (329,999)
Selling, general and (264,524) - - - - (264,524)
administrative expenses
Research and development {139,880) - - 17,097 - (122,783}
expenses
Amortisation of intangible (32,593) - - - - (32,593}
assets
Loss from affiliates (30,587) - - - - {30,587)
Other income/(deductions) - {84,893) 66,943 - - (11,249)  (29,199)
net
Income from continuing 654,036 66,943 - 17,097 (11,249) 726,827
operations before provision
for taxes on iIncome
Provision for taxes on income {232,370) - {2,706) (6,497) - (241,573)
Net income 421,666 66,943 (2,7086) 10,600 (11,249) 485,254
Other comprehensive income
Exchange movements on (14,014) - - - - (14,014)
overseas net assets and net
investment hedges
Actuanal {losses) on defined (785) - - - - (785)
benefit plans
Tax on exchange 555 - - - - 555
Deferred tax on actuarnal 229 - - - - 229
movements in defined benefit
plans
Total comprehensive iIncome 407,651 66,943 (2,706) 10,600 (11,249) 471,239

Notes

1 Reversal of the unwinding of the discount and re-measurement of the hability for estimated future
preferential dividends payable to GSK as the liability 1s not recognised under US GAAP
2 Adjustment to reflect the different method of calculation for the deferred tax on deferred profit in

stock

3 Milestone payments made on assets in development are expensed under US GAAP but capitalised
under IFRS The milestone payment expensed in 2010 under US GAAP was reversed in 2011 as the
asset in development was wnitten-off under IFRS

4 Removal of the net economic benefit true-up from GlaxoSmithKline as this i1s a balance with an entity

under common control
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Balance sheet as at 31st December 2012

IFRS Note A Note B Note C Note D Note E US GAAP as
As at 31st at 31st
December December
2012 2012
£'000 E'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 755,812 - - - - - 755,812
Accounts Recewvable 272,002 - - - - - 272,002
Inventones 16,458 - - - - - 16,458
Taxes and other current 817 65,273 B A (8,617) i 57,473
assets
Total current assets 1,045,089 65,273 - - (8,617) - 1,101,745
Goodwill 203,179 - - - - - 203,179
ldentifiable intangible assets,
less accumulated 2,047,388 - - - - - 2,047,388
amortisation
Investments in affiliates 4,454 - - - - - 4,454
Other assets, deferred taxes 68,371 {58,072) ; A _ . 10,299
and deferred charges
Total assets 3,368,481 7,201 - - (8,617) - 3,367,065
Liabilities and Shareholders’
Equity
Short-term borrowings and
overdraft (8,858) - - - - - (8,858)
Accounts payable (63,736) - - - - - (63,736)
Income taxes payable {6,506) - - - - - {6,506)
Other current habilities {inc
a2 - - - -
deferred taxes) (342,873) 9,868 (333,005}
Total current habilittes (421,973) - 5,868 - - - {412,105}
Other Provisions {10,173} - - - - - {10,173)
Long-term borrowings (414) - - - - - {a414)
Deferred taxes (272,707) {7,201) - - - - {279,908)
Other non-current habilties {1,656,349) - 764,743 - - - (891,606)
Total habiities (2,361,616) {7,201) 774,611 - - - (1,594,206)
Common stock {11) - - - - - (11)
Additional patd in capital {341,000) - - {80,553) - - (421,553)
Retaned earnings {and (665,854)  (20,861) (774,611) 80,553 8,617 - (1,372,156)
Reserves)
Accumulated other
cemprehensive - 20,861 - - - - 20,861
{income)/expense
Total shareholders' equity (1,006,865} - (774,611) - 8,617 - (1,772,859)
d
Total habilities an (3,368,481 (7.201) - - 8,617 - (3,367,065)

shareholders’ equity
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Balance sheet as at 31st December 2011

IFRS Note A Note B Note C Note D Note E US GAAP as
As at 31st at 31st
December December
2011 2011
£'000 £'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 518,403 - - - - - 518,403
Accounts Receivable 402,220 - - - - - 402,220
Inventortes 37,009 - - - - - 37,009
Taxes and other current 32,604 29.216 ) : (5.555) ) 56,265
assets
Total current assets 990,236 29,216 - - (5,555) - 1,013,897
Goodwill 210,685 - - - - - 210,695
Identifilable intangibie assets,
less accumulated 557,735 - - - - - 557,735
amortisation
Investments in affiliates 8,271 - - - - - 8,271
Other assets, deferred taxes 47,801 {29,216} - - - - 18,185
and deferred charges
Total assets 1,814,338 - - - (5,555) - 1,808,783
Liabtlities and Shareholders'
Equity
Short-term borrowings and
overdraft (385) ) ) ) (383)
Accounts payahle {106,088) - - - - - {106,088)
Income taxes payable (44,620) - - - - - (a4,620)
Other current habibties (inc
deferred taxes) (409,413) (7,953) 32,065 - - - (385,301)
Total current lialhities {560,506) (7,953) 32,065 - - - (536,394)
Other Provisions (4,442) - - - - - {(4.,442)
Long-term borrowings (536) - - - - - {536)
Deferred taxes (130,631) 7,953 - - - - (122,678)
Other non-current habilities (626,737) - 320,360 - - - (306,377)
Total liabilities (1,322,852} - 352,425 - - - {970,427)
Common stock (10) - - - - - {10)
Additional paid in capital - - - (80,553} - - (80,553)
d
Retained earnings (an (491,476}  (8,062) ({352,425) 80,553 5,555 - {765,855)
Reserves)
Accumulated other
comprehensive - 8,062 - - - - 8,062
(iIncome)/expense
Total shareholders’ equity (491,486) - {352,425) - 5,555 - (838,356)
Total habilities and (1,814,338) . ) ) 5,555 ) (1,808,783)

shareholders' equity
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Notes

A

Reclassifications (1} under US GAAP the current portion of the deferred tax asset and lability 1s
reclassified into current assets and current habilities based on the classification of the underlying
balance to which the deferred tax relates and (u) foreign currency gains/losses on the translation of
assets and habihties held by entities whose functional currencies are not GBP are recorded in retained
earnings under IFRS and 1n accumulated other comprehensive income/expense under US GAAP
Removal of the liability for estimated future preferential dividends payable to GlaxoSmithKline as this
does not meet the conditions for recognition under SFAS 5 and 1s not contingent consideration ansing
on the business combination (unhke the dividends payable to Pfizer)

Removal of the net economic henefit recevable from GlaxoSmithKline as this 1s a balance with an
entity under common control Payments received from GlaxeSmithKhine are treated as additional
capital contributions under US GAAP

Adjustment to reflect the different method of calculation for the deferred tax an deferred profit in
stock
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Financial statements of VuV Healthcare Limited prepared under UK GAAP

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) Under company law the
Directors must not approve the Company financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affairs of the Company for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenial departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactrons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
to enable them to ensure that the Company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors in office at the date of this Report have each confirmed that

# 50 far as he or she 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and
* he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or herself

aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted In accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Going concern basis

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue n operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing the financial statements

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are willing to continue in office as auditors and resolutions dealing with therr
reappointment and remuneration will be proposed at a General Meeting of the Company

Or behalf of the Board

D Limet

Director

15 March 2013
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We have audited the parent company financal statements of ViV Healthcare Limited for the year ended 31st
December 2012 which comprise the Company Balance Sheet — UK GAAP and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in thew preparation 15 apphcable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibihties of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 62, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body Iin
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent In
writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the parent company’s crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estunates made by the directars, and the averall presentation of the
financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31st December 2012,

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the parent
company financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion
* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
+ the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or
s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
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e we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matters

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Vv Healthcare Limited for the year ended
31st December 2012

The Company has passed a resolutton in accordance with section 506 of the Compames Act 2006 that the
senior statutory auditor's name should not be stated

PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

—_
23 March 2013
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Notes 2012 2011
£000 £000

Fixed assets
Investments D 2,444,415 2,320,953
Current assets
Debtors E 126,290 616
Creditors amounts falling due within one year F (17,889) (36,827)
Net current assets/({liabilities) 108,401 (36,211}
Total assets less current liabilities 2,552,816 2,284,742
Creditors amounts falling due after one year F (1,733,593) (1,853,817)
Net assets 819,223 430,925
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital G 11 10
Profit and loss account H 852,572 926,805
Share Premium H 341,000 -
Other reserves H (374,360) (495,890)
Total shareholders' funds 819,223 430,925

The financial statements on pages 65 to 69 were approved by the Board of Directors on 1S5 March 2013 and

ed con its behalf by

D Limet
Director
ViV Healthcare Limited

Registered number 06876960
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A Presentation of the financial statements
Description of business

VIV Healthcare Limited 1s the parent company of the ViV Healthcare group of companies, a specialist HIV
group focused solely on the research, development and commercialisation of HIV medicines The Group was
established by GlaxoSmithKline plc and Pfizer Inc On 29th October 2012 VuV Healthcare acquired the 50%
share of the Shionogi-ViV Healthcare joint venture previously held by Shronogi & Co, Ltd in return for a 10%
shareholding in ViV Healthcare Limited and additional contingent consideration payable based on the future
sales performance of compounds developed in the joint venture Shionogl & Co, Ltd 1s also entitled to
“Marketed Products Dividends” similar to those to which GSK and Pfizer are entitled The group Is now owned
by GlaxoSmithKline plc, Pfizer Inc and Shionogi & Co, Ltd

Preparation of financial statements

The financial statements, which are prepared on a going concern basis, are drawn up In accordance with UK
generally accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP) and with UK accounting presentation as at 315t December
2012, with comparative figures as at 31st December 2011

As permitted by s 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company is not presented
in this Annual Report

Accounting convention and standards

The balance sheet has been prepared using the historical cost convention and comphes with applicable UK
accounting standards

Accounting principles and policies

The preparation of the balance sheet in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the balance sheet Actual amounts could differ
from those estimates

The balance sheet has been prepared in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies approved by the
Board and described in Note B

B Accounting policies
Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate ruling on the date of transaction Foreign
currency assets and liabilities are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Dividends paid and received

Dividends paid and received are included in the financial statements (n the period in which the related
dividends are actually paid or received
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Expenditure

Expenditure 15 recognised n respect of goods and services recewved when supplied in accordance with
contractual terms Provision IS made when an obligation exists for a future hability in respect of a past event

and where the amount of the cbligation can be reliably estimated

Investments in subsidiary companies

Investments in subsidiary companies are held at cost less any provision for impairment

Impairment of investments

The carrying values of investments are reviewed for imparrment when there 1s an indication that the

investment might be impaired Any provision resulting from an impairment review 1s charged to the income

statement in the year concerned

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid applying tax rates that have been enacted or

substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

The Company accounts for taxation which 1s deferred or accelerated by reason of timing differences which
have orniginated but not reversed by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the

extent that they are considered recoverable against future taxable profits

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing

differences are expected to reverse Deferred tax liabibties and assets are not discounted

C Operating profit

Afee of £6k (2011 £7k) relating to the audit of the Company has been charged in operating profit

D Fixed asset investments

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cost and carrying value at 1 January 2,320,953 2,320,953
Additions 378,000 -
Impairment {254,538) -
Cost and carrying value at 31st December 2,444,415 2,320,953

Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company as at 31st December 2012 are given in Note |

E Debtors

2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed by ViV Healthcare Group undertakings 124,838 -
Amounts owed by Pfizer Group undertakings 31 -
Taxation 1,421 616
126,290 616

The taxation debtor 1s due from fellow ViV Healthcare Group undertakings
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F Creditors

2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year
Accruals and other creditors 17,889 36,827
17,889 36,827

Amounts due after one year

Amounts owed to ViV Healthcare Group undertakings 1,369,363 1,386,980
Other creditors 364,230 466,837
1,733,593 1,853,817

Other creditor represents future preferential dividends due to GlaxoSmithKline and Pfizer (Note G}

G Share Capital

2012 2011 2012 2011
Number of Number of

shares shares £'000 £'000

Issued and fully paid
Class A Shares of £1 each 6,950 6,950 7 7
Class B Shares of £1 each 2,798 2,798 3 3
Class C Shares of £1 each 252 252 - -
Class D1 & D2 Shares of £1 each 1,112 - 1 -
11,112 10,000 11 10

Holders of Class A, B and C Shares are entitled to both preferential dividends and ordinary dividends As part of
the acquisiion ViV Healthcare Limited 1ssued a new class of D shares to Shionogi in return of their 50%
investment in joint venture Class D shares are spht into Class D1 and Class D2 Class D1 are entitled to ordinary
dividends and Class D2 are entitled to Shionog! preferred ordinary dividend Preferential dividends are based
on the performance of certain assets and are payable in full pnior to any ordinary dividend Any amounts that
cannot be pad due to insufficient distributable reserves will be carried forward to future years and will be paid
in preference to any subsequently declared dividend

The Directors propose an intenm ordinary dividend of £450 million n respect of the year ended 31st
December 2012 being £55,036 per Class A Share, £22,194 per Class B Share and £21,429 per Class C Share

The Directors will propose a preferential dividend in respect of the year ended 31st December 2012 at a future
date (2011 £37 million)

The Directors proposed and paid two interim ordinary dividends amounting to £306 million and one
preferential dividend of £37 million in respect of the year ended 31st December 2011

The first interim ordinary diwvidend of £170 millien being £20,791 per Class A Share, £8,385 per Class B Share
and £8,095 per Class C Share was paid on the 4th Apnl 2012

The second interim ordinary dividend of £136 million being £16,634 per Class A Share, £6,708 per Class B Share
and £6,477 per Class C Share was paid on the 20th June 2012
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H Reserves

Profit and loss

Share Other reserves Total reserves

account Prermum
account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31st December 2010 922,764 - {515,569) 407,195
Profit for the financial year 816,338 - - 816,338
Transfer of finance expense related to (19,679) - 19,679 -
preferential dividend
Ordinary dividends to shareholders (792,618) - - {792,618)
At 31st December 2011 926,805 {495,890) 430,915
Profit for the financial year 353,304 - - 353,304
Transfer of finance expense related to (121,665) - 121,665 -
preferential dividend
Preferential dividend to shareholders {36,865) - 36,865 -
Ordinary dividends to shareholders {(306,007) - - {306,007}
Shionogi preferred ordinary dividend 37,000 - (37,000) -
Share premium on share 1ssues - 341,000 - 341,000
At 31st December 2012 852,572 341,000 {374,360) 819,212

On 29th Qctober 2012, ViV acquired the exclusive global rights to the Shionogi-VuV Healthcare joint venture
assets As part of the consideration ViV Healthcare issued shares equivalent to 10% of the company value

Other reserves represents the preferential dividends payable to shareholders (Note G) and additional value
attributed to the ariginal contnbution of the former GSK HIV business in Canada in October 2009 following
finalisation of the value of the contribution at that date

Other reserves do not affect the calculation of the Company’s realised profits available for distribution

| Principal subsidiaries

The principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st December 2012 are as follows

Percentage Class of Country of
Company shares held  shares held Incorporation
VuV Healthcare UK Limited 100% Ordinary England
ViV Healthcare Overseas Limited 100% Ordinary England
VoV Healthcare Trading Services UK Limited 100% Ordtnary England
PHIVCO UK Limited 100% Ordinary England
PHIVCO UK Il Lirmited 100% Ordinary England
VuV Healthcare UK {No 2) Limited 100% Ordinary lersey
ViV Healthcare Company 100% Common USA
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